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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(Expressed in United States dollars)

The following discussion is a review of the aciest results of operations and financial
condition of South American Gold and Copper Comphimyited and its consolidated
subsidiaries (“SAGC” or the “Company”) for quarteasded March 31, 2009 and 2008
and the six months ended March 31, 2009 and Match?B08, together with certain
trends and factors that are expected to impacutnd operations and financial results.
This information is presented as of May 13, 200Be Tiscussion should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated finanatdtements of the Company and the
notes to those statements. The Company’s consetidmtancial statements and financial
data have been prepared in accordance with Cangginerally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”). In addition, this discussionomtains certain forward-looking
statements regarding the Company’s businesses paictmns. These statements are
based on assumptions and judgments of managengamtineg future events and results.
Actual results may differ materially from thesetstaents as a result of a number of
factors, many of which are beyond the control of38A For more detail on these factors,
refer to the section titled “Risks” in this docurhen

All dollar amounts are expressed in United Stat#kuisb, except as otherwise indicated.

Additional information relating to the Company, linding the Company’s most recent
Annual Information Form, is available on SEDARatw.sedar.com.

Forward-looking information

This management’'s discussion and analysis contamsefers to forward-looking
information. All information, other than informatioregarding historical fact, that
addresses activities, events or developments ti@tCompany believes, expects or
anticipates will or may occur in the future is famd-looking information. Forward-
looking information can often be identified by faw-looking words such as
“anticipate”, “believe”, “expect”, “plan”, “intend” “estimate”, “may”, “could”,
“potential”, “should” “will” or similar words suggging future outcomes, or other
expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumgtimtentions or statements about future
events or performance. Such forward-looking infaroraincludes, without limitation,
information regarding the Company’s expected onmpdal targets with respect to its
operations and projects, estimates and/or antedpétvels and grades of future gold
and/or copper production, the estimated mine life the Pimenton gold mine,
expectations regarding future production levelsPahenton, potential mineralization,
exploration results and the Company’'s future exlon plans, development and
operational plans and objectives (including delimepadditional mineral resources),
expectations regarding the timing for the calcolatf mineral reserves, the Company’s



expectations regarding its dividend policy and éméicipated grade of limestone at the
Company’s limestone deposits.

The forward-looking information in this managemsndfiscussion and analysis reflects
the current expectations, assumptions or beliefhh@fCompany based on information
currently available to the Company. With respect feoward-looking information
contained in this management’s discussion and saisalythe Company has made
assumptions regarding, among other things, the @awip ability to generate sufficient
cash flow from operations and capital markets toetmiés future obligations, the
regulatory framework in Chile, with respect to, amgoother things, permits, licenses,
authorizations, royalties, taxes and environmematters, the ability of management to
increase commercial mining operation at Pimentamj she Company’s ability to
continue to obtain qualified staff and equipmenaitimely and cost-efficient manner to
meet the Company’s demand.

Forward-looking information is subject to a numloérisks and uncertainties that may
cause the actual results of the Company to diffatenmally from those discussed in the
forward-looking information, and even if such adtresults are realized or substantially
realized, there can be no assurance that theyhawé the expected consequences to, or
effects on, the Company.

Factors that could cause actual results or evemtslifter materially from current
expectations include, but are not limited to: thedg and recovery of ore which is mined
varying from estimates; capital and operating cuatying significantly from estimates;
inflation; changes in exchange rates; fluctuationscommodity prices; delays in
achieving planned production levels at the Pimemold mine caused by unavailability
of equipment, labor or supplies, climatic condipnnability to delineate additional
mineral resources and other factors including,nmatlimited to, those listed under “Risk
Factors”.

Any forward-looking information speaks only as bdetdate on which it is made and,
except as may be required by applicable securities, the Company disclaims any
intent or obligation to update any forward-lookimgormation, whether as a result of
new information, future events or results or othisewAlthough the Company believes
that the assumptions inherent in the forward-logkiformation are reasonable, forward-
looking information is not a guarantee of futurefpemance and accordingly undue
reliance should not be put on such information tdutae inherent uncertainty therein.

The mineral resource figures referred to in thimagement’s discussion and analysis are
estimates and no assurances can be given thahdieated levels of minerals will be
produced. Such estimates are expressions of judgbesed on knowledge, mining
experience, analysis of drilling results and indugiractices. Valid estimates made at a
given time may significantly change when new infation becomes available. While the
Company believes that the resource estimates eeféorin this management’s discussion
and analysis are well established, by their nataspurce estimates are imprecise and
depend, to a certain extent, upon statistical @rmfees which may ultimately prove



unreliable. If such estimates are inaccurate oredaced in the future, this could have a
material adverse impact on the Company. Due taitfoertainty that may be attached to
inferred mineral resources, it cannot be assumetdathor any part of an inferred mineral

resource will be upgraded to an indicated or meamkunineral resource as a result of
continued exploration.

Outstanding share information

As of May 13, 2009, the Company has issued ones disommon shares and has a total
of 749,600,521 common shares outstanding. The Coypas 127,839,856 common
share purchase warrants outstanding, each of vidiekercisable for one common share
at exercise prices of CA$0.026 CA$0.25 through December 18, 2010. Share ogtion
outstanding as of May 13, 2009, total 89,949,538vbich 73,510,000, are currently
exercisable at prices of CA$0.040 to CA$0.09 panmon share expiring at various
dates through April 30, 2013. The principal on @empany’s $1,600,000 convertible
secured debt is convertible into 28,108,304 comsiw@res of the Company. In addition,
in March 2009 the Company issued the principle arthaf a $507,119 convertible
subordinate lease debenture into a maximum 12,886&8mmon shares of the
Company.

Acquisition costs of resource properties, togethveith direct exploration and
development expenses incurred thereon, are defamddcapitalized in the accounts.
Upon reaching commercial production, these capédli costs are transferred from
exploration properties to mining properties, plamd equipment are amortized into
operations using the units of production methodbtagyon proven and probable mineral
reserves and mineral resources. Management regutaibws the carrying value of each
mineral property using estimated undiscounted désks from each project. When
review suggests impairment, the carrying valuehef project would be reduced to the
extent it exceeded the fair value.

This discussion addresses matters which the Compahgves are important for an
understanding of its financial condition and resuf operations as of and for the three
months ended March 31, 2009 and the six month gemaled March 31, 2009 and for its
future prospects. It consists of the following sdi®ns:

* The Company’s vision, core business and strategy
» Key performance drivers

» Capability to deliver results

* Results

* Outlook

* Risks factors

The Company'’s vision, core business and strategy

The Company is a Canadian corporation, listed enTibronto Stock Exchange (TSX)
with mining and exploration activities primarily @hile. On July 1, 2004, the Company



commenced commercial production at its Pimentod guhe. Operations ceased in June
2005 owing to unusual weather conditions. In Decam007, the Company was
successful in raising $3,974,997 with which to fistdrt-up operations at its Pimenton
gold mine. Most of the Company’s efforts have bfmused on restarting Pimenton and
effective October 1, 2008, commercial productionh&f mine was declared at the rate of
91 tons per day during the 21 days of plant opamaduring October 2008. The Company
will continue to focus its principal efforts on Ramton to bring the mine up to a
production rate of 200 tons per day in mid 201the TCompany is also engaged in the
exploration for and acquisition of gold and otheinenal properties. The Company’s
principal exploration activities had been focusedaopotential porphyry copper deposit
located within the Pimenton area on which the Camggd#olds mining claims. Pursuant
to a letter of understandingl©OU") signed in March 2007, Empresa Minera de Mantos
Blancos S.A. subsequently renamed Anglo AmericamteN8.A. (“Anglo”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Anglo American, p.l.c. (“Anglamerican”), Anglo was to drill
2,000 meters of diamond drill holes, which was clatga in May 2007. Discussions
between the Company and Anglo regarding a potejailad venture agreement were in
process when Anglo withdrew from such discussionsQxtober 30, 2008 due to
uncertainty in world commodity prices. In additidthe Company holds mining claims on
Tordillo, a gold and copper prospect and has aeduandurrias, a copper prospect, and
La Bella, a gold/copper prospect. The Company Aalsids interests in two limestone
deposits. The Company will continue exploration the Pimenton porphyry copper
deposits in the 2008-2009 exploration season apéatx to conduct further drilling on
the project during the 2009-2010 exploration seas®s a result of management’s
decision to focus on Pimenton, the Company wroterdds Catedral/Rino project in
accordance with Section 3063 — impairment of laagd assets. Irrespective of Section
3063 the directors and management of the Compaligvbehese properties will have
longer term value to the Company and its sharesldedditionally, the Company has
written off its exploration costs, until it deentgtproject to have a definitive resource
potential as defined by National Instrument 43-1The total amount of these write
downs as of September 30, 2008 was $6,056,0001diti@n the Company wrote down
$61,017 for the six month period ended March 3D92@vhich consists of $53,873 for
explorations and leasehold costs and $7,144 retategtoverable taxes.

Using its core mineral assets, the Company beliégvissnow positioned to grow into a
profitable mining company as it re-starts productiat its Pimenton gold mine and
develops its gold and copper prospects.

Pimenton gold mine
Pimenton encompasses 3,121 hectares (7,708 acres).

The Pimenton gold mine started operations on J0842and was shut down on June 9,
2005, when a major snow storm moved through themegausing extreme avalanche
danger at the mine site and the road leading fctions taken by management protected
the camp and plant buildings at the mine duringdteem period. However, electrical
and air compressor equipment at the mine’s maitapentrance was damaged causing a



shut-down of operations. The plant roof was subsetiy damaged by snow load
conditions after the mine had been evacuabedlJanuary 2008 work was started to
prepare the mine for operations.

The Company raised an aggregate of $3,974,99piivate placement, which closed on
December 17, 2007. In addition, two directors afftcers of the Company financed
lease purchase agreements to purchase mining egpigor the Pimenton mine totaling
$530,162. On September 9, 2008, a further CA$1/@13was raised through a non-
brokered private placement in which three directws of whom are also officers of the
Company, participated in the aggregate amount d1C200,000. The net proceeds from
such private placements and the equipment leaaading enabled the Company to put
its Pimenton mine into production in July 2008 witbmmercial production being
declared effective October 1, 2008, at a rate oflpction of 91 tons per day during the
21 days the plant was in operation during Octol®#982 The Company has plans to
gradually increase production to 100 tons per dayhe next twelve months with a
further increase to 200 tons per day by mid-yedi02@t the present rate of production,
proven and probable reserves are sufficient for ywars. The Company is currently
working to convert 321,000 tons of drill indicatexsources as defined in the Company’s
December 31, 2008 resources and reserve reporhwias done in compliance with NI
43-101 into the proven and probable reserves amtincee exploration for new gold
veins at Pimenton.

Pimenton - porphyry copper

In March 2005, the Company entered into an LOU wRlo Tinto Mining and
Exploration Ltd. (“Rio Tinto”) whereby Rio Tinto aged to fund and complete a 2,600 to
3,000 meter diamond drill program on the potenpatphyry copper deposit located
within the Pimenton area. Following completion loé tdrill program, Rio Tinto had the
right to exercise an option to enter into a forjoaht venture option agreement. In June
2006, the Company received notification that Rintdihad terminated the joint venture
agreement with the Company. Rio Tinto provided gpl@ation report which concluded,
among other things:

» Eight drill holes were drilled totaling 3,891 meta@f diamond drilling.

* A mineralized copper-gold porphyry system was disced.

» Although the copper and gold grades can be coresidarbeconomic at this stage,
there is the potential for a high grade core atldep

» It recommended drilling a few holes in the mainleslto evaluate the vertical
extension of mineralization.

» Potential resources of several hundred million tares thought to be a realistic
scenario.

» Results of the exploration program done by Rio dihave added significant
value to the Pimenton project and consequentliigshareholders.

In March 2007, the Company entered into a new LOth Wmpresa Minera de Mantos
Blancos S.A., which was subsequently renamed AAgherican Norte S.A. (Anglo) a



wholly owned subsidiary of Anglo American PLC whayeAnglo agreed to fund and
complete a 2,000 meter diamond drill program onpbiential porphyry copper deposit
located within the Pimenton area. Anglo completed drill program. In October 2007,
during its join venture discussions, Anglo Ameridaformed the Company that it had
decided to terminate further discussions regardingh joint venture agreement due to
the uncertainty in world commodity prices. The Camp will continue exploration on
the Pimenton porphyry copper deposits in the 200@2exploration season and expects
to conduct further drilling on the project duririget2009-2010 exploration season.

Tordillo

Tordillo is located 11.5 kilometers south-southwesPimenton and covers an area of
6,632 hectares (16,381 acres). It is in the eaNploration stage and to date the
Company has identified several gold vein structsigeslar to those at Pimenton and an
area of potential porphyry copper mineralizatidrhe preliminary data suggests Tordillo
contains the upper part of a deep-seated coppérayal possibly copper molybdenum
porphyry system associated with narrow high gradé eopper veins which may be
widespread and represent a separate exploratigettairordillo is located in an area of
intense exploration activity.

Bandurrias

Bandurrias was acquired in August 2007 by the Camby way of an option agreement
for the property. Under the terms of this optignegement, $30,000 was paid on signing,
$70,000 was due in six months, followed by four mapts of $100,000 every six
months, with a final payment at 36 months of $600,0 The balance of the $6,500,000
price or $5,400,000 will be paid in the form of & Jiet smelter royalty. In April 2008,
the Company did not renew its option agreement andBrrias which was comprised of
claims covering approximately 1,982 hectares (48&@s) in the Fifth Region of Chile
and wrote off $214,000 relating to this option a&gnent, but has acquired approximately
13,400 hectares (33,098 acres) surrounding the uBaad Prospect area in which the
Company owns a 100% interest.

La Bella

The Company has signed an option agreement (th&&lla Option Agreement”) to earn
a 100% interest on claims covering approximatedp@,hectares (9,840 acres) (the inner
circle) and has put down additional claims covermgouter circle which encompasses
an additional area of approximately 24,900 hecté@é&s503 acres) of claims located 75
kilometers southwest of Santiago, Chile.

A small field crew is prospecting the 28,900 hexta(71,383 acres) of total claims held
by the Company for gold veins.

Under the terms of the La Bella Option Agreememtér circle) the Company has paid a
cumulative of $100,000 which was due in Decembe¥82@nd will pay, $200,000 in



December 2009, $800,000 in December 2010, $900j60@ecember 2011 and
$1,000,000 in December 2012. The Company will p&y46 net smelter royalty to the
optionee from production thereafter.

On the outer circle the Company has paid $100,060Décember 2008, and will pay
$100,000 in December 2009, $500,000 in Decembed,2HA00,000 in December 2011,
$1,000,000 in December 2012 and $2,600,000 in Deee013. The Company will pay
a 2% % net smelter royalty to the optionee of timer circle from production thereafter.

In addition, on the inner and outer circle the Camp has a combined minimum
exploration obligation of $50,000 in year one, $280 in year two and $700,000 in year
three.

Limestone deposits

Lime is used by the Chilean mining industry in mesing sulfide copper ores and in
heap leaching of gold ores.

The Chilean lime market was adversely affectedhaydevaluation of the Argentinean
peso in 2003 resulting in a flow of cheap lime fréwgentina into the Chilean lime
market for the last four years. This situation diméncial constraints on the Company
have limited the ability of the Company capital@eits lime position. With the recovery
of the Argentinean economy in the past three yé#aesdomestic demand for lime is
improving thereby allowing for increased pricing the Argentinean lime producers.
Trucking costs of Argentinean lime imported intoil€thave also increased the costs of
Argentinean lime to the Chilean mining industry @his a large consumer of lime.

While the changing economic situation, as notedvapwill enable the Company to
continue its efforts to become a supplier of liroettie Chilean copper industry, it also
strengthens the Company’s position as it revieuweyradtive strategies for the sale, joint
venture or spin-off of the Catedral, Rino and Caltd limestone properties.

Key performance drivers
Pimenton gold mine

Operations at Pimenton had been suspended from18yrZ005 until July 2008, due to
the major snow storm damage. During December 20@/Company was successful in
raising $3,974,997 to initiate the restart of ofiers at its Pimenton gold mine. The
Company has scaled back its original plans forRimeenton gold mine announced in
2006 in connection with the Company’s initial plaaise up to $14,000,000. The
Pimenton gold mine has been prepared for a 50 &ndpy rate of production to be
gradually increased to 200 tons per day in mid 20X@ current proven and probable
reserves will support this operation for nearly tyears and the cash flow to develop
additional proven and probable mineral reservetie Tompany declared commercial
production at Pimenton effective October 1, 2008 latons per day.



Pimenton - porphyry copper

Rio Tinto notified the Company that it had termathtthe joint venture with the
Company. The 3,891 meter diamond drill program catetl by Rio Tinto identified a
copper gold porphyry system and added significaalties to the Pimenton porphyry
copper project.

In March 2007 the Company entered into a new LOlthwinglo a wholly owned
subsidiary of Anglo American PLC (Anglo Americanh&reby Anglo agreed to fund and
complete a 2,000 meter diamond drill program ongbintial porphyry copper deposit
located within the Pimenton area. Anglalled one hole to approximately 1,000 meters
in length. This hole was drilled off structure asmucountered very weak mineralization.
Anglo completed a second hole to 1,000 meters winvabl equivalent in grade to Rio
Tinto’s drill holes No. 4 and 6, but drilled to D@ meters compared to the 600 meters in
Rio Tinto’s drill hole No. 4.

Anglo informed the Company that it wished to exsgdits right under the LOU to enter
into joint venture discussions. These discusswae abruptly terminated by Anglo on
October 30, 2008. The Company will continue exgloraon the Pimenton porphyry
copper deposits in the 2008-2009 exploration seasdrexpects to do further drilling on
the project during the 2009-2010 exploration season

Capability to deliver results

The mining industry is intensely competitive in allits phases. The Company competes
with many companies possessing greater technicdititss and financial resources than
are available to it.

All phases of the Company’s operations are sulifp@nvironmental regulation in the

various jurisdictions in which it operates. Envineental legislation is evolving in a

manner which will require stricter standards andoex@ment, increased fines and
penalties for non-compliance, more stringent emvitental assessments of proposed
projects and a heightened degree of responsilfititycompanies and their officers,

directors and employees.

The Company is subject to exchange variations agasfunctional currency, the United
States dollar, as it purchases certain goods anitsg in Chilean pesos and Canadian
dollars. The Chilean peso fluctuates in line withbasket of currencies currently
consisting of the US dollar, the Euro and the Japaryen. The Central Bank of Chile
from time to time re-weights the percentage of easpghplaced on a given currency in
the basket and may from time to time replace onddmourrency in the basket with
another world currency. The Company’s revenueanyf, in the future, will be primarily
derived from the mining and sale of gold, coppiengktone and lime and the disposition
of interests in mineral properties or interestsatedd thereto. The price of these
commodities has fluctuated widely, particularly iecent years, and is affected by



numerous factors beyond the Company’s control dholy international, economic and
political trends, expectations of inflation, curcgnexchange fluctuations, interest rates
and global or regional consumptive patterns.

Pimenton gold mine

On July 1, 2004, the Company commenced commerctygtion and incurred some
normal and some unexpected start up operatinggmablFrom July 1, 2004 to June 19,
2005 the mine experienced operating losses.

On June 9, 2005, a major storm system moved thrdbhghCentral Andes causing

extensive avalanche activity throughout the regibDoiring a period of 10 days, the storm
dropped almost four meters of snow, causing extramadanche danger at the mine and
along the road leading to it.

On December 29, 2003, Compania Minera Pimenton @QMentered into a loan
agreement with the Overseas Private InvestmentdZatipn (“OPIC”) for $2,800,000
project financing.

The loan agreement contained financial and operaticovenants, including, among
other things, a minimum working capital ratio, aied, limitations on trade debt and
short term credit facilities, achievement of minmmuexploration drilling, minimum
reserve development and minimum production levels.

Due to events at the mine, CMP advised OPIC thddelieved it would not be in
compliance with financial and operating covenaritésoloan agreement for the calendar
quarters through and until October 1, 2006. OnteSrber 30, 2006 and September 30,
2007 the Company notified OPIC that it was not ampliance with the financial and
operating covenants of the loan agreement and @Ritted CMP an additional waiver
until June 30, 2009. The Company is currently getiating the terms of the OPIC
wavier agreement.

The Company raised sufficient funds to restart afi@ns at Pimenton in December 2007
on a reduced basis of 50 tons per day to be grgdualeased to 200 tons per day. The
Pimenton mine was declared to be in commercial ypton affective October 1, 2008,

producing at the rate of 91 tons per day during2hedays it was in operation during

October 2008.

Potential porphyry copper

The Rio Tinto 3,891 meter diamond drill programntiieed a mineralized copper gold
porphyry system with potential resources of sevieualdred million tonnes.

In January 2008, Anglo commenced drilling on a sdcoole to 1,000 meters and carry
out additional mapping at Pimenton before makimgeision to enter into a joint venture
agreement on the project. This hole was succeasfililAnglo entered into joint venture



discussions with the Company. On October 30, 20@8,Company was informed by
Anglo that it was terminating discussions on théntjoventure agreement due to
uncertainties in world commodity prices.

The Company has incurred sufficient explorationgeexlitures to maintain the Pimenton
porphyry in good standing.

Tordillo

The presence of strong extensive explosive bredsiaeminiscent of the porphyry
copper systems at large existing copper mines ite Ctsubsequent exploration should
bring into perspective the vein potential and ds&hhif the porphyry system is large
enough to host possible economic copper mineraizatffhe Company is deferring
exploration activities while it is bringing Pimenton line.

Bandurrias

The Company expects to conduct a further explaraéib Bandurrias to determine ore
continuity from an adjacent copper producing prgpduring the 2009-2010 exploration
season based of copper prices at that time. Thep@aynis deferring exploration

activities during the 2008-2009 exploration seasbiie it is bringing Pimenton on line.

La Bella

The Company has signed the La Bella Option Agree¢rerearn a 100% interest on
claims covering approximately 4,000 hectares (98#@s) (the inner circle) and has put
down additional claims covering an outer circle e@thencompasses an additional area of
approximately 24,900 hectares (61,503 acres) afnsldocated 75 kilometers southwest
of Santiago, Chile.

A small field crew is prospecting the 28,900 hee$a(71,383 acres) of claims held by the
Company for gold veins.

Under the terms of the La Bella Option Agreememtér circle) the Company has paid a
cumulative of $100,000 which was due in Decembe¥82@nd will pay $200,000 in
December 2009, $800,000 in December 2010, $900j60@ecember 2011 and
$1,000,000 in December 2012. The Company will p@y26 net smelter royalty to the
optionee from production thereafter.

On the outer circle the Company has paid $100,060Décember 2008, and will pay
$100,000 in December 2009, $500,000 in Decembed,2HA00,000 in December 2011,
$1,000,000 in December 2012 and $2,600,000 in Deee013. The Company will pay
a 2% % net smelter royalty to the optionee of timer circle from production thereafter.
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In addition, on the inner and outer circle the Camp has a combined minimum
exploration obligation of $50,000 in year one, $280 in year two and $700,000 in year
three.

As of March 31, 2009, the Company it wrote off afdiional $18,076 relating to
exploration costs on the La Bella in line with gslicy of writing off explorations
expenditures until a resource potential in accardamvith NI 43-101 has been
established.

Limestone deposits

The Chilean lime market was adversely affectedhaydevaluation of the Argentinean
peso in 2003 resulting in a flow of cheap lime fréwgentina into the Chilean lime

market for the last four years. With the recovefryh@ Argentinean economy in the past
two years the domestic demand for lime is improvihgreby allowing for increased

pricing by the Argentinean lime producers. Truckoaugts of Argentinean lime imported
into Chile have also increased the costs of Argesin lime to the Chilean mining

industry which is a large consumer of lime.

The Company’s limestone deposits at Catedral and Noamte contain high grade

limestone which, when calcined, can produce limat tihe Company’s management
believes will qualify for use by the Chilean minimglustry. The Company believes that
the Cal Norte lime project will shortly be able tompete against Argentinean lime
imports. While the changing economic situation, raged above, will enable the

Company to continue its efforts to become a supptiehe Chilean copper industry, it
also strengthens the Company’s position as it vevialternative strategies for the sale,
joint venture or spin-off of the Catedral, Rino a@@dl Norte limestone properties.
Financial constraints have limited the Company$itsglio develop its lime prospects.

As at March 31, 2009, the Company had contribu&&2,000 (2008 - $3,439,000) to
finance a drilling program on Catedral/Rino and pteted a preliminary feasibility study

for construction of a 1,320,000 ton per day capao#ment manufactory facility on the

project as well as a preliminary feasibility stuidy constructions of a 600 ton per day
lime kiln on the Catedral property. The Compangteroff the balance of $3,492,000 in
mining properties and exploration costs relatingCettedral/Rino as the properties had
been on care and maintenance for more than thisge yre accordance with section 3063
— impairment of long — lived assets, as it focuse®fforts on its Pimenton gold mine.

For the six months period ended March 31, 2009 Gbmpany wrote off an additional

$32,034 relating to leasehold costs on the Caté&irad.

As at March 31, 2009, the Company had contribute838,000 (2008 - $1,490,000) to
finance a bankable feasibility study on the progead for environmental permitting and
further mine development on Cal Norte. Although @@mpany has incurred sufficient
explorations expenditures to maintain the Cal Ngteperty in good standing, the
Company wrote off the balance of $1,534,013 in ngrproperties and exploration costs
as the properties had been on care and mainterfanceore than three years in
accordance with section 3063 — impairment of loriged assets, as it focuses its efforts
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on its Pimenton gold mine. For the six month permuded March 31, 2009, the
Company wrote off an additional $3,763 relatingldasehold costs on the Cal Norte
project.

Results

2009

Critical accounting policies and estimates
Asset Impairment

The carrying values of producing mineral propertiesluding properties placed on a
care and maintenance basis and related deferrehditpres, are reviewed when events
or changes in circumstances arise that may rasuthpairments in the carrying value of
those assets. Estimated future net cash flowsnamdiscounted basis, are calculated for
each property using: estimated recoverable resergssmated future metal price
realization (considering historical and currentes, price trends and related factors); and
estimated operating, capital and other cash floatintates of future cash flows are
subject to risks and uncertainties. It is possib& changes could occur which may affect
the recoverability of the carrying value of minegpabperties.

Reserves

Mineral reserves will be calculated in accordandt Mational Instrument 43-101 (“NI
43-101"), a rule adopted by Canadian securities iadtrators as the standard of
disclosure for mineral projects. This estimate seduto determine mine viability, mine
life and amortization rates. The estimation of Resgis based on drill hole information,
historical mining results, historical metallurgigakults, estimated future operating costs
and estimated future metal prices. A “Qualified @@, as defined by NI 43-101,
performs the Reserves estimate.

Amortization

The Company uses the units-of-production methodioortization of mineral properties
and some of its fixed assets based on the Resefwgs.significant changes in the
Reserves could impact the amount of annual amdtidiza

Inventory

In June 2007, a replacement section for inventpr8estion 3031 “Inventories” was
issued and provides guidance on the determinaficost and its subsequent recognition

as an expense, including any write-down to neizalle value. It also provides guidance
on the cost formulas that are used to assign tosteentories and eliminates the use of
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the “last-in, first-out” method of accounting arsdeffective for the fiscal years beginning
on or after January 1, 2008.

The Company values its concentrate inventorieseatawer of cost or realizable value at
the end of the reporting period. Realizable vahmudes metal prices, net of treatment
charges and freight. Metal prices can be subjedidoificant change from period to

period.

Consolidations of Financial Statements

The Company’s consolidated financial statementgegsented in U.S. dollars and have
been prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAPhndnie described in note 2 to such
statements. The preparation of financial statementccordance with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions fteat the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the finansiatements and the reported amounts and
expenses during the reporting period. Managemeniews its estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis using the mostrdumformation available; however,
actual amounts could materially differ from thoseséd on estimates and assumptions.
Management's critical accounting estimates, whigplya to the assessment for the
impairment of exploration and mining properties avaritten-off during the year ended
on September 30, 2008 totaling $6,056,000. In amdivrite downs of $61,017 were
incurred for the six months period ended MarchZ2D9.

Foreign currency translation and transactions

The Company'’s functional currency is the U.S. dolldhe Company’s foreign currency
transactions, balances and integrated operationgniieated in foreign currencies are
translated into the Company’s reporting currencyg.Udollars, as follows:

Monetary assets and liabilities are translatedhat exchange rates in effect at the
consolidated balance sheet dates. Non-monetarysaasd liabilities are translated at
rates prevailing at the respective transactionsd®evenues and expenses are translated
at average rates prevailing during the year, with éxception of amortization, which is
translated at the historic rate of the related tasBenslation gains and losses are
reflected on the consolidated statements of omersitideficit and comprehensive loss.
The Company’s operations expose it to significanttiations in foreign exchange rates.

To discharge its responsibilities for financial oefing and for safeguarding of assets,
management believes that it has established apatepystems of internal control which

provide reasonable assurance, at appropriate ttedt,the assets are maintained and
accounted for in accordance with its policies ahdt tthe transactions are recorded
accurately on the Company’s books and records.

Management has identified the following criticataenting estimates that could have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statetsien
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The Company has compiled, with an independent figdliperson under Canadian
Instrument 43-101, a Mineral Reserve and Mineratdreses estimate of the Pimenton
mine on December 31, 2008, as required by Canadieurities regulatory authorities. It
should be noted that mineral reserve estimatesimpeecise and depend partly on
statistical inferences drawn from geological datéjch may prove to be unreliable.
Future production could differ significantly fronstenated mineral reserves because of
differences between actual and estimated minetaliza

The fair value of share options used to calculatenpensation expense has been
estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model.

Financial Instruments

Effective October 1, 2007, the Company adoptedGheadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants’ new Handbook Section 1530, “Compreivengncome”, Section 3855,

“Financial Instruments”, and Section 3861, “Finahdinstruments” — Disclosure and
Presentation”. These standards were adopted onospgutive basis but calculated
retrospectively; accordingly, the comparative ficiahstatements for the prior year have
not been restated.

Comprehensive income

Section 1530 introduces new requirements for sanatwhen certain gains and losses
(“other comprehensive income” or “OCI”) must be pararily presented outside of net,
loss. Comprehensive income includes both net logs @CI. OCI is the change in
shareholders’ equity from non-owner sources whrehrat included in the calculation of
net loss until realized. Cumulative changes in @& included in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (“AOCI”), which is presentecaanew category of shareholders’
equity on the balance sheet. The Company had nar@@actions during the year ended
September 30, 2008, and no opening nor closingibasafor AOCI.

Financial instruments recognition, measurement, didosure and presentation

Under section 3855, all financial instruments afassified into one of these five
categories: held-for-trading, held-to-maturity istreents, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets or other finahkabilities. All financial instruments
and derivatives are measured on the balance slaet al fair value upon initial
recognition. Subsequent measurement depends oniniti@ classification of the
instrument. Held-for-trading financial assets areasured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognized in net earnings (loss). Aafalg-for-sale financial instruments are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair vakerded in OCI until the instrument is
derecognised or impaired. Loans and receivabléd;thematurity investments and other
financial liabilities are measured at amortizedtcéd derivative instruments, including
embedded derivatives, are recorded in the balameet st fair value unless they qualify
for the normal sales and purchases exemption. @saimgthe fair value of derivatives
that are not exempt are recorded in net loss.
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Upon adoption of these new standards, the Compasydésignated its cash as held-for-
trading, which is measured at fair value. Recemsbhre designated as loans and
receivables, which are measured at amortized ddstounts payable and accrued
liabilities are designated as other liabilities,ievhare measured at amortized cost. At
March 31, 2009, the Company had neither availatmeséle nor held-to-maturity
financial instruments.

The Company evaluated the impact of Section 3858sa2007 financial statements and
recorded a transition adjustment to opening deficithe 2007 year in the amount of
$22,000 to reflect the impact of adopting the dffecinterest rate method.

Section 3861 identifies and details informatioéodisclosed in the financial statements.
Hedging

This standard specifies the circumstances undechnMhedge accounting is permissible
and how hedge accounting may be performed. The @oynpurrently does not hold any
financial instruments designated for hedge accaognti

Accounting Changes

Section 1506 revised the standards on changesauating policy, estimates or errors to
require a change in accounting policy to be apptedospectively (unless doing so is
impracticable or is specified otherwise by a newoaating standard), changes in
estimates to be recorded prospectively, and prieriod errors to be corrected
retrospectively. Voluntary changes in accountindicgoare allowed only when they
result in financial statements that provide rekalbihd more relevant information. In
addition, these revised standards call for enhardisdlosures about the effects of
changes in accounting policies, estimates and ®mwar the financial statements. The
impact of this new standard cannot be determineitl such time as the Company makes
a change in accounting policy, other than the ceamgsulting from the implementation
of the new CICA Handbook standards.

The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountantseidshe new Handbook Section 3064,
“Goodwill and Intangible Assets”, which will repla&Section 3062, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets”. The new standard establishesed standards for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of gobdwil intangible assets. The new
standard also provides guidance for the treatmiepteproduction and start-up costs and
requires that these costs be expensed as inclinechew standard applies to annual and
interim financial statements relating to fiscal igebeginning on or after October 1, 2008.
Management assessed the impact of these new acwmpstandards on its consolidated
financial statements. The Company has determiregddgferred charges meet the criteria
for deferral with the adoption of CICA Handbook Bee 3064 for the fiscal year
beginning October 1, 2008.
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Future Accounting Changes
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”

In 2006, the Canadian Accounting Standards Boakd$B”) published a new strategic

plan that will significantly affect financial repaorg requirements for Canadian
companies. The AcSB strategic plan outlines thevexgence of Canadian GAAP with

IFRS over an expected five year transitional peribd February 2008 the AcSB

announced that 2011 is the changeover date folgbhbsted companies to use IFRS,
replacing Canada’s own GAAP. The date is for imbeand annual financial statements
relating to fiscal years beginning on or after Jagul, 2011. The transition date of
January 1, 2011 will require the restatement fomgarative purposes of amounts
reported by the Company for the year ended Septer@bél. While the Company has
begun assessing the adoption of IFRS for 2011 fittaacial reporting impact of the

transition to IFRS cannot be reasonably estimattéaisatime.

For interim and annual financial statements retptim its fiscal year commencing October 1,
2011, the Company will be required to adopt new ALIl&ccounting Handbook Section 1582
“Business Combinations”, Section 1601 “Consolidaféthncial Statements” and Section 1602
“Non-Controlling Interest”. Handbook Section 158&blaces existing Handbook Section 1581
“Business Combinations”, and Handbook Sections 180d 1602 together replace Handbook
Section 1600 “Consolidated Financial StatementBhe adoption of Handbook Sections 1582,
and collectively, 1601 and 1602 provides the Caaradéquivalent to IFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” and International Accounting Standdf&&b 27 “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements” respectively. The Comparg/ri@t yet determined the effect, if any, that
the adoption of these standards will have oniitarfcial statements.

Results of operations for the quarter ended March B, 2009, compared to the
guarter ended March 31, 2008.

The Company recorded net income of $1,139,000Herthree month ended March 31,
2009 and losses of $1,316,000 for the three mamdlect March 31, 2008, respectively.

Revenue from gold was $3,469,924 and from copper silver was $342,860 with
related operating expenses of $1,852,121. The masedeclared to be in commercial
production at 91 tons per day effective Octobe2)8. Plans are to gradually increase
production to 200 tons per day by mid calendar $€d:10. Revenues for gold, silver and
copper sales from the mine are expected to coveratipg costs of the mine plus
generate sufficient funds to cover capital expemditequired to sustain operations in the
future. The Company has committed to purchase fmow cats estimated to cost
$600,000, three Land Rovers estimated to cost©$61and two snow blowers estimated
to cost $115,000. The Company also intents taiinatsystem to convert the Knelson
Concentrate into gold dore bars at an estimatetb$t $150,000. This purchase would
facilitate operations in the future. These capitgbenditures total $926,000. The ability
of the Pimenton mine operations to cover its ofregatosts and generate sufficient funds
to cover capital expenditure budget is dependarnherprices of gold, silver and copper;
dependant on the gold veins in the mine retairtieg tvidth, continuity and grade of ore;
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dependant on snow conditions in the Chilean wintbich runs from May 2009 to
December 2009; dependant on the future price cfetliiel; dependant on the price of
the Chilean peso relative to the US Dollar and ddpat on the ability of the Company
to retain its current work force. In addition ther@pany must successfully renegotiate
the terms of its loan with OPIC in the amount of5%b6,000 on which the Company has a
waiver of Principal payment from OPIC until June, 209 at which time the loan
payments are to be renegotiated.

The Company sells its gold, silver and copper cotreée directly to the Enami smelter
which is owed by the State of Chile through its evahip of CODELCO. Enami pays for
approximately 60% of the value of shipment the wiedlowing delivery and the balance
of the payment is made one to two months followiing date of receipt of the initial
payment. As the Company increases the producti@®@otons per day in mid 2010 this
one to two months delay in receipt of the balarfcin® 40% payment will cause a short
term cash flow shortfall for the Company. In adufiti during the winter months of
operation the 80 kilometer road into the mine sda be closed for extended periods of
time, thereby not allowing shipment of copper conige to Enami. The Company’s
Knelson Concentrate, however, which contains 60%hefgold value produced by the
mine can be either helicoptered, or taken out efrttine by the snow cats described
above.

The ability of the Company to produce its own gdtié at the mine site would further
increase its flexibility both in delivery to Enawhuring winter months or by allowing the
Company to ship the gold dore bars directly to lal gmelter in Europe or Canada which
would eliminate the one to two months delay in igicef payment from Enami.

Operating cost were $1,852,121 in the three moatided March 31, 2009 compared to
nil for the same period in 2008. This increase was to start-up operations at the
Pimenton Gold mine in October 1, 2008. The incrediseng the three month period
ended March 31, 2009 consists of: mine expenses,36D; plant operations $394,155;
maintenance and operations road $255,106; roya2d45,968; smelting, refining and
metallurgical charges $144,045; management $23@&87p $156,154; transportation of
concentrate $35,932; health clinic & safety ancert$18,099.

Amortization expenses were $256,134 in the threethsoended March 31, 2009 due to
the start of commercial production at Pimenton octoBer 1, 2008. Amortization
expenses are amortized into operations using theotiproduction method (UOP) over
the estimated useful lives of the related ore keserDepreciation expenses in the three
months ended March 31, 2009 were $176,485 compargtl53,000 for the same period
in 2008. The increase of $23,485 was due to miaqupment purchases.

Temporary mine shut down costs were $nil in theg¢hmonths ended March 31, 2009

compared to negative $3,000 for the same perio20D8. The change was due to the
mine start up activities which were recommence@otober 1, 2008.
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General and Administrative costs in the three morghded March 31, 2009 were
$303,000 compared to $251,000 for the same peni@Dd8. This $52,069 increase was
due to an increase of $34,807 in professional &elsservices, of which $17,005 related
to legal fees; $10,000 for metallurgical servicg8;802 investor relations. In additions
for the three months ended March 31, 2009 the cagnpzcurred $11,409 increase in
salaries; $8,252 increase in utilities, $20,70%dmse in claims and notary; $12,436
increase in expansion cost. This was offset bgdaigtion in: (i) taxes and penalties of
$10,423 and (ii) shareholders expenses $25,115.

Stock based compensation was $50,714 during tlee tmonth period ended March 31,
2009 compared to $177,000 for the same period 082The Company has expensed
$50,714 for the vesting period of the Common StOgkions during three months ended
March 31, 2008, for the 2,339,538 common stockomtigranted on April 30, 2008, and
25,000,000 common stock options granted on Marg2@88. The Company issued on
March 13, 2008, 25,000,000 Common Stock Optionskvinere issued to the President
of the Company (10,000,000 options) and three neweckdrs and two Serving Directors

who are not officers of the Company (15,000,0000mg). In addition, 1,950,000 options

were granted to seven employees who are not dffiosethe Company. The Company
has expensed the fair value of the Common Stoclo@pturing the three months ended
March 31, 2008 as Compensation expense of $177J0@0fair values of the Common

Stock Options were assigned using the Black-Schotegel, assuming a risk free interest
rate of 3.6%, no dividend, and a volatility factdr50%.

Warrant revaluation expenses represent the fairevaf the extended warrants in excess
of the fair value of the warrants being extendethatextension dates and is charged to
expense. In the six months ended March 31, 200835628 warrants expiring on
January 31, 2008, were extended to March 31, 20d8ttzen they expired. 20,000,000
warrants expiring on October 21, 2006 were extertghexl times; first to October 22,
2007 and then to April 22, 2008 when they expifHtese warrant revaluations resulted
in an expense of $5,010. The fair value of the aras were assigned using the Black-
Scholes valuation model assuming risk free intaists of 1.75% to 4.21%, no dividend
and a volatility factor of 50%.

The foreign exchange gain was $191,000 in the thmeath ended March 31, 2009
compared to a gain of $482,000 in the same peridD08. This decrease of $291,000
was due to the increase of the US dollar versusCthiiean peso which resulted in a
decreased of $208,259 related to the recoverakds tahich are denominated in Chilean
pesos. Other balance sheet items were adversegtedf by amounts of approximately
$82,741.

The estimated cash flow in reclamation and remigstiaif $3,825,000 is expected to be
incurred over a period extending to ten years ¢aled at the present value on March 31,
2009. This estimated cash flow is discounted usingedit —adjusted risk-free rate of
7.5%. Reclamation and remediation discounted &0 7ds the three month period ended
March 31, 2009 was $34,478.
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Exploration costs written-off during the three mmntended March 31, 2009 totaled
$52,000. Exploration and mining properties writtgh-during the three months ended
March 31, 2008 totaled $1,016,000.

Other income was $46,000 in the three month endaati31, 2009 compared to $3,000
in the same period of 2008. Recovery of payment$4d,802 for mining claims was
recovered in November 2008.

Results of operations for the six months ended Malc31, 2009, compared to the six
months ended March 31, 2008.

The Company reported net income of $738,000 fosthenonth period ended March 31,
2009 compared to loss of $1,707,000 for the sixthmended March 31, 2008.

Revenue from gold sales were $5,134,432 and froppeoand silver sales were
$502,495 with related operating expenses of $23&5for the six months period ended
March 31, 2009. The mine was declared to be in ceroma production at 91 tons per
day effective October 1, 2008.

Operating expenses were $2,925,381 in the six rsagritded March 31, 2009 compared
to nil for the same period in 2008. The increasenduthe six month period ended March
31, 2009 consisted of: mine expenses $883,971t plaerations $590,056; maintenance
and operations road $421,366; royalties $332,781lting, refining and metallurgical
charges $243,808; management $45,554 camp $295td&8%portations concentrate
$51,374; health clinic & safety and others $61,276.

Amortization expenses were $397,884 in the six morinded March 31, 2009 (March
31, 2008 — nil) due to the start of commercial mitbn at Pimenton on October 1, 2008.
Amortization expenses are amortized into operatimisg the unit-of production method
(UOP) over the estimated useful lives of the relaige reserves. Depreciation expenses
for the six months ended March 31, 2009 were $3@4ddmpared to $300,747 for the
same period in 2008. The increase of $53,253 wagamining equipment purchases.

Temporary closure expenses were nil in the six reatlted March 31, 2009 compared to
$51,000 for the same period in 2008.

General and administrative costs decreased by @24 the six months ended March
31, 2009 as compared to the same period in 2008eBblders expenses decreased by
$36,781; professional and consultants fees deaeageb47,897. In addition to this,
other costs increased as follows: Salaries inctkdse $25,043, rent increased by
$11,911; utilities increased by $15,203; expansicost increased by $12,436;
miscellaneous other expenses, including overheackased by $6,521.

Stock based compensation was $101,429 during xheeith period ended March 31,
2009 compared to $177,000 for the same period 082The Company has expensed
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$101,429 for the vesting period of the Common SiOgkions during six months ended
March 31, 2008, for the 2,339,538 common stockamgtigranted on April 30, 2008, and
25,000,000 common stock options granted on Marg2@88. The Company issued on
March 13, 2008 25,000,000 Common Stock Options lwhiere issued to the President
of the Company (10,000,000 options) and three neweckdrs and two Serving Directors

who are not officers of the Company (15,000,0000mg). In addition, 1,950,000 options
were granted to seven employees who are not dffiokthe Company. The Company
has expensed the fair value of the Common Stocko@gptduring the six months ended
March 31, 2008 as Compensation expense of $177J0@dfair values of the Common

Stock Options were assigned using the Black-Schotetel, assuming a risk free interest
rate of 3.6%, no dividend, and a volatility factdr50%.

Warrant revaluation expenses represent the fairevaf the extended warrants in excess
of the fair value of the warrants being extendethatextension dates and is charged to
expense. In the six months ended March 31, 2008356628 warrants expiring on
January 31, 2008, were extended to March 31, 2@@8lzen they expired. 20,000,000
warrants expiring on October 21, 2006, were extdnse times; first to October 22,
2007 and then to April 22, 2008 when they expirdthese warrant revaluations resulted
in an expense of $16,000. The fair value of theravas were assigned using the Black-
Scholes valuation model assuming risk free intaists of 1.75% to 4.21%, no dividend
and a volatility factor of 50%.

The foreign exchange loss of $48,000 for the sixntm® ended March 31, 2009

compared to a gain of $827,000 for the same pendD08. The change of $875,000

was due to the increase in value of the US dokaisas the Chilean peso. This resulted
in a decrease of $679,567 related to recoverakéstavhich are denominated in Chilean
pesos. In addition to this, participants in thec&®uaber 17, 2007 private placement
locked in a US dollar to Canadian dollar exchargte with the Company prior to the

actual private placement. When the shares weredstuesulted in a foreign exchange
gain of $233,000. Other exchange increased amouwvdas$b38,000.

The estimated cash flow of reclamation and remextiaif $3,825,000 is expected to be
incurred over a period extending to ten years t¢aled at the present value on March 31,
2009. This estimated cash flow is discounted usingedit —adjusted risk-free rate of
7.5%. Reclamation and remediation discounted &b67#dr the six month period ended

March 31, 2009 was $68,337.

Exploration costs written-off during the six montesded March 31, 2009 totaled
$61,055. Exploration and mining properties writtdh-during the six months ended
March 31, 2008 totaled $1,016,000.

Other income decreased by $ 38,342 for the six mpetfiod ended March 31, 2009
compared to the same period in 2008. Recovery gimpats of $46,802 for mining
claims was recovered in November 2008. This wasebtby a reduction in other income
of $8,460.
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Liquidity and capital resources

The acquisition, exploration, financing, and depehent of natural resources require the
expenditure of significant funds before producti@ommences. Historically, the
Company has financed these activities through #seiance of common shares, the
exercise of options and common share purchase migyretne issuance of promissory
notes and debentures, bank debt and extended frermgreditors.

The Company raised an aggregate of $3,974,99phvate placement which closed on
December 17, 2007. In addition, two directors afftcers of the Company financed
lease purchase agreements to purchase mining egpigar the Pimenton mine totaling
$530,162. On September 9, 2008, a further CA$17/®13was raised through a non-
brokered private placement in which three dire¢tws of whom are also officers of the
Company, participated in the aggregate amount o$1C200,000. These funds and the
equipment lease financing have enabled the Comparput its Pimenton mine into
production in July 2008 with commercial productioeing declared effective October 1,
2008, at a rate of production of 91 tons per daje Company has plans to gradually
increase production to 100 tons per day in the heglve months with further increases
to 200 ton per day by mid year 2010. At the presate of production, proven and
probable reserves are sufficient for two years.e TQompany is currently working to
convert 321,000 tons of drill indicated resoura@® ithe proven and probable reserves
resources as defined in the Company’s Decembe2@18 resources and reserve report
which was done in compliance with NI 43-101 inte firoven and probable reserves and
continue exploration for new gold veins at Pimenton

The Company had raised sufficient funds to restperations at Pimenton in May, 2008
but delays in the receipt of certain plant equiphustayed the restart of operations of the
plant until mid-July 2008. In the meantime minirgvdlopment operations continued.

At March 31, 2009, cash was $1,886,000 and $22i00€urrent and restricted cash,
respectively.

To preserve its cash position the Company plarotwentrate its efforts on Pimenton
and substantially defer expenditures on other ptsje

The positive working capital of $804,000 at March 2009 is expected to be further
increased by revenues and operating profit fromGbenpany’s Pimenton gold mine,
which began commercial operations at 91 tons pgrefi@ctive October 1, 2008. The
Company plans to gradually increase productiorDt@ns per day by mid calendar year
2010. A large part of the working capital defiditRecember 31, 2008 was the treatment
of the Company’s $1,556,000 loan from OPIC as ailyedue. The Company has
received a waiver of principal payments on the loatil June 30, 2009. Prior to June 30,
2009 the Company and OPIC have agreed to renegdhat repayment terms of this
loan. The risks associated with achieving a pasitworking capital position are
described under “Results of Operations — 2008".
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On April 16, 2007, the shareholders authorizedGbenpany to apply for a certificate of
continuance under the Canada Business Corporationghe “CBCA”) continuing the
Company as if it had been incorporated under th€&BThe continuance was applied
for and completed. As a result of the continuarte €ompany's authorized capital
consists of an unlimited number of common sharéls mo par value.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividendsdoes not foresee the declaration
or payment of dividends in the near future. Angigsien to pay dividends on its shares
will be made by the board of directors on the basithe Company’s earnings, financial

requirements and other conditions existing at guttire time.

On March 13, 2007 the Company enter into an LOUnwihglo. Anglo drilled 2,000
meters of diamond drill holes under the terms & HOU. The Company and Anglo
American were in the process of entering into atjgenture agreement on the Pimenton
porphyry copper deposit when, on October 30, 2008jlo0 American informed the
company that it was withdrawing from the LOU andyotgations on the joint venture
agreement were terminated.

The Executive Vice President - Director, Claims amahd Management and the
Executive Vice President-Director of Exploratiorgthp directors of the Company hold
the non-controlling interest in the Catedral pras@and the Company has agreed to lend
such officers and directors up to an additiona%$@,000 for development costs.

La Bella

The Company has signed the La Bella Option Agreeérnterearn a 100% interest on
claims covering approximately 4,000 hectares (9&e¥@s) (the inner circle) and has put
down additional claims covering an outer circle e@thencompasses an additional area of
approximately 16,000 hectares of claims locateil@meters southwest of Santiago,
Chile.

A small field crew is prospecting the 28,90€ctares (71,383 acres) of claims held by the
Company for gold veins.

Under the terms of the La Bella Option Agreememtér circle) the Company has paid a
cumulative of $100,000 which was due in Decembe¥82@nd will pay $200,000 in
December 2009, $800,000 in December 2010, $900j60@ecember 2011 and
$1,000,000 in December 2012. The Company will p&y#6 net smelter royalty from
production thereafter.

On the outer circle the Company has paid $100,60December 2008, and will pay
$100,000 in December 2009, $500,000 in Decembed,28M00,000 in December 2011,
$1,000,000 in December 2012, $ 2,600,000 in Dece2®®3. The Company will pay a
2%% net smelter royalty from production thereafteraddition, on the inner and outer
circle the Company has a combined minimum explonatibligation of $50,000 in year
one, $250,000 in year two and $700,000 in yeaethre
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Cal Norte

The Company must make an additional capital comtiobh of $394,000 to Cal Norte to
earn its 60% equity interest.

Related party transactions

A company owned by chief executive officer, whaliso a director, billed the Company
$42,228 for the six months period ended March 809Zor the provision of office space
and services used by the Company.

Receivable from an officer and director of $182,84:8the six months ended March 31,
2009 is the net amount of non-interest-bearing neieeivable compensations and
advances to the chief executive officer who is alstirector of the Company. The note is
due on or before an extended due date of June@®m, Zollateralized by 6,532,000
common shares of the Company owned by this ofécerdirector. As at March 31, 2008
the note receivable amounted to $286,233, nonestdyearing advances to this officer
and director amounted to $47,694 and was includdahig-term receivables.

The former Chief Financial Officer of the Compamyired on February 6, 2008 at which
time he was owed $207,260. The Company enteredhim&birement agreement with the
former Chief Financial Officer under which he rees 2,000,000 Bonus Shares and was
paid $17,648 for the difference between the netssptice of the 2,000,000 Bonus Shares
and $100,000. In addition he has been paid $5,@00nonth beginning February, 2008
and will continue to be paid at the rate of $5,p@0 month until Pimenton is placed into
commercial production at which time he will recei®&2,500 per month until the net
balance of $29,860 as of March 31, 2009 has be&h fphe Chief Financial Officer
billed $nil for accounting services rendered to @@mpany for the six month period
ended March 31, 2009 (March 31, 2008 - $4,504).

A company controlled by the current Chief Finan€dficer billed the Company $20,809
for accounting and administration services rendéretie six month period ended March
31, 2009 (March 31, 2008 - $8,555). Amounts dueetated parties include payables to
this officer of $5,257 for such services at Mardh 3009 (March 31, 2008 - $1,912).

On February 13, 2009 the Company received appfomal Toronto Stock Exchange for
the issuance of a Convertible Debenture securedebgyipment leases totaling
US$507,119. The Convertible Debenture are nonestdsearing and are convertible at
CA$0.05 per share or for up to a total of 12,336,3Bares. Under the term of the
Convertible Debentures, the net amount (total lgesenents less lease payments made
less the balance of interest due on the remaimiagg payments) shall be convertible into
common shares of the Company. As the lease payrmemthade by Compafia Minera
Pimenton, the amount of the Convertible Debentwsecorrespondingly reduced.
Compaiia Minera Pimenton may on 30 days noticé¢oléssor prepay the net amount
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due to be paid to the lessor less all remainingrést due under the leases or the lessor
may elect to take the balance of the lease payf(nenof interest on the remaining lease
payments) in shares of the Company within the 3@ rd#tice period. The Convertible
Debenture will be issued to secure certain equiprigases used to purchase equipment
for the Pimenton gold mine on terms not currentigilable to Pimenton. The conversion
feature of convertible secured debentures wasrassig fair value of $152,664 using the
Black-Scholes valuation model assuming a risk fn¢éerest rate of 1.82%, no dividend
and a volatility factor of 120% and such fair valwas credited to equity convertible
secured note. The debenture was recorded at #ieivdlue of 354,455 and by July 4,
2010, the carrying value of the debentures willehbeen accreted to $507,119, the face
amount due upon maturity. The balance of this deiverwas $378,324 at March 31,
2009.

On December 12, 2008, the Company sold througlivatprplacement 19,408,620 units
at CA$0.025 per unit, consisting of one common eshamd one half common share
purchase warrant to purchase a further common sa@&$0.045 per share at any time
within 24 months of the date of issue, of which85220 shares were issued to a director
who is also an officer of the Company in paymentcash advance of $85,000 at
November 2008, plus purchase warrants to purchps® 2,145,510. In addition the
placement agent is to receive 1,209,888 commork gioichase warrants exercisable for
24 months from the date of issuance at CA$0.025pare.

During 2007, the Executive Vice-President Directdgims and Land Management, who
is also a director of the Company, purchased amast in the Pimenton notes and royalty
from a non-related party. The fair value of thigenwas $917,085 at March 31, 2009
(March 31, 2008 - $760,000) and interest expensge $2#,150 for six month period

ended March 31, 2009 (March 31, 2008 - $24,282).0é4ms due to related parties

include $218,076 (2008- $170,799) for interest &A68,036 for royalties as at March

31, 2009 (March 31, 2008 - $91,802).

Amounts due to related parties include $219,544%69,644 as at March 31, 2009 and
2008, respectively, for interest due to executiee\president-director of exploration

who is also a director of the Company who holds ohthe Pimenton notes in the fair

value amounts of $911,235 and $754,000 as at MakcR009 and 2008, respectively. In
addition, amounts due to related parties includ@8¥236 and $91,802 as at March 31,
2009 and March 31, 2008, respectively, for royaltiee to this officer and director who

is the owner of a net smelter royalty on the Pimengold mine and include a cash
advance of $8,909 which was provided to the compaduly 2008.

On June 20, 2007, the Company sold through a pripltcement 26,431,515 units at
CA$0.05 per unit, consisting of one common shareé ane common share purchase
warrant to purchase a further common share at @X$0er share at any time within 36
months of the date of issue. Net proceeds of tlaeegphent were $1,174,978. The
subscriber, the Executive-Vice-President-DirectoClaims and Land Management, who
is also a Director of the Company, subscribed aid for 31,360,000 units. On January
15, 2008 the remaining 4,928,485 units were issuedhe same terms as above. Net
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proceeds of the placement were $220,022, of whiéh,420 was assigned to the
warrants. The fair value of the warrants was assigusing the Black-Scholes valuation
model assuming a risk-free interest rate of 2.80&6dividend and a volatility factor of
50%.

In April 2008, the Executive Vice-President and dator of Exploration and the
Executive Vice-President of Land and Administratibaoth of whom are directors of the
Company agreed to enter into an agreement to [gasbase to the Company’s wholly
owned subsidiary, CMP, two new Komatsu front enddkrs on terms not currently
available to the Company. The purchase price ofwlzeKomatsu front end loaders total
$440,038 inclusive of VAT at 19%, for $220,019 eathe Company has made a 25%
payment against the purchase price of the equiparehthe balance was funded by these
two officers and directors under the 37-month I§gasehase agreement.

In June 2008, the Executive Vice-President anddioreof Exploration, who is also a
director of the Company agreed to guarantee thenpayof a 37-month lease purchase
agreement entered into by the Company on Februgrg@8 with a local Chilean bank
for the purchase of a 4x4 Land Rover and a 4x4 Nihitruck for a total purchase price
of $71,624 plus VAT at 19% for a total of $85,23Zhis director and officer of the
Company has also guaranteed the payment of a 3thrtease/purchase agreement with
a local Chilean bank for the purchase of an amlwaldor purchase price of $54,992 plus
VAT at 19% or a total of $65,440.

In June 2008, the Executive Vice-President anddioreof Exploration, who is also a
director of the Company agreed to enter into ae@gent to lease/purchase two new 4x4
Land Rover trucks to the Company’s wholly owned ssdilary, CMP, on terms not
currently available to the Company. The purchaseef the two Land Rovers totalled
$83,998 inclusive of VAT at 19%, for $41,999 eathe Company has made a 20%
payment against the purchase price of the equiparahthe balance was funded by this
officer and director under the 37-month lease/pasehagreement.

In April 2008, the Executive Vice President anddgtor of Land and Administration,

who is also a director of the Company agreed te@reimto a 37-month agreement to
lease/purchase two Hino trucks, one for 32,000 rkdj the other for 17,000 kg, to the
Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, CMP, on termg oorrently available to the

Company. The purchase price of the two Hino truokal $203,693 inclusive of VAT tax

at 19%, the first for $129,341 and the second 7@, 352.

Two officers and directors of the Company hold tie@-controlling interest in Catedral.
Under an agreement dated November 27, 1996, thep@wyragreed to provide or cause
to provide these officers and directors a loan pta $1,250,000 each or $2,500,000 in
total. Such loans are to pay their proportionagrelof development costs if a bankable
feasibility study demonstrates that the propertgas be placed into commercial
production, and to fund their combined 50% shareanfoption payment totalling
$500,000, which was paid during 1997.
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The Executive Vice President and Director of Claiamel Land Management and the
Executive Vice President and Director of Explomtiboth directors of the Company,
hold convertible secured debentures of the Compathe aggregate principal amount of
$1,600,000. Interest expense was $37,961 and $7¢93he periods ended March 31,
2009 and March 31, 2008, respectively. Amountstduelated parties include payables
to these officers of $73,913 and $116,999 as atMai, 2009 and March 31, 2008,
respectively, for interest on such debentures.

On July 11, 2008, the Executive Vice President@mdctor of Land and Administration,
who is also a director of the Company bought froMRC a Ford Ranger truck. The sale
price of the truck was $13,575 inclusive of VAT t@ix19%. The transaction generated a
$5,326 loss to the Company. Amounts receivable frelated parties include $12,884 for
this transaction.

The Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Vice $ident and Director of Exploration
and the Executive Vice President and Director omAdstration who are also Directors
of the Corporation hold a total of 3.2% net smeltgralty interest on Tordillo, a 3.2%
net smelter royalty interest on Bandurrias and 5%. net smelter royalty interest on
both the inner circle and out circle of claims oa Bella. These net smelter royalty
interests were approved by the Board of Directoid @ompensation Committee of the
Company in 2001. These individuals have not receigempensation and benefits
comparable to mining industry standards since 2001.

Mineral Reserves and Mineral Resources Estimates

The Company has compiled, with an independent figdliperson under Canadian
Instrument 43-101, a Mineral Reserve and Mineratdreses estimate of the Pimenton
mine on December 31, 2008. This report is filedaexhibit to the Company’s Annual
Information Form which is available on SEDAR at wwwedar.com.

The Company declared the mine to be in commergadiyction effective October 1,

2008 at the rate of 91 tons per day of productidns production rate will be gradually
increased to 200 tons per day in mid 2010. Thevotlg is a sensitivity analysis:
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PRODUCTION VARIABLES AND SENSITIVITIES FOR 100 to 2 00 TPD.

VARIABLES

Head grade gold 14.44 glt
Head grade copper 1.26 %
Tons per day year 1 100 Tpd
Starting tones per day 100 to 200 by Septembe® 200 200 Tpd
Price per Ounce Gold $750

Price per pound Copper $1.50

Exchange rate US$ 650 CH$
Plant combined recovery 90%

Price per Ounce Gold $750

Price per pound Copper $1.50

Exchange rate US$ 650 CH$
Loan Interest rate 8.50%

Price per liter Diesel 650 CH$
Price per liter Gasoline 650 CH$

ALL IRR% ARE FOR ENTIRE INVESTMENT
100 TPD to 200tpd USING PRICES OF $750 gold and $80 Copper

Grade Sensitivity. Projects from a low of 109/t td.6 g/t Au head grade through plant.
Au

glt Cu% Op.Cost/Oz IRR%
10 0.5 $425 70%
12 1.0 $359 97%
14 1.2 $323 118%
16 14 $296 138%
Cost/Oz is cash cost per ounce at the mine

100 TPD

Recovery Sensibility. Projects from 5% to 10% lesplant Recovery for gold.

% diff. Recovery Op.Cost/Oz IRR%
-10% $343 106%
-5% $329 114%
2% $311 126%

Operating cost/Oz is cash cost per ounce at the mi

Tonnage Sensitivity at 100 to 200 tpd.

Tons per day Op.Cost/Oz IRR%
100 $557 43%
125 $459 61%
150 $407 77%
175 $370 90%
200 $316 106%
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200 TPD
Price of Gold Sensitivity

Price per Ounce IRR%
$500 68%
$600 87%
$700 105%
$800 123%
$900 140%

$1,000 158%

Price per liter of Diesel fuel

Cost per Ounce
of Au produced IRR%

CH$ 400 $301 126%

CH$ 500 $307 125%

CH$ 600 $313 124%

CH$ 700 $319 122%

CH$ 800 $325 121%

CH$ 900 $331 119%
Outlook

Results of the Rio Tinto exploration program hawtex significant value to the
Pimenton porphyry copper deposit. Anglo, a whollwned subsidiary of Anglo
American PLC, has completed drilling on a second km 1000 meters at Pimenton. The
drill hole results were positive as announced by @ompany on April 8, 2008. The
Company proceeded to enter into joint venture disicuns with Anglo but on October 30,
2008 Anglo abruptly terminated discussions duehtuncertainty in world commodity
prices.

In mid-July 2008 the company restarted the opematad Pimenton at an initial rate of 50
tons per day. The Company declared commercial ptamueffective October 1, 2008 at
91 tons per day of production.

The Company’s limestone deposits at Catedral and N@ate contain high grade
limestone which when calcined can produce lime tih@& Company’'s management
believes will qualify for use by the Chilean minirigdustry. Improved economic
conditions in Argentina have increased the costeAtige lime imported by the Chilean
mining industry making Chilean lime deposits mooenpetitive.

Management believes that the values of the Pimegddosh mine, the potential porphyry

copper deposit, the Catedral, Rino and Cal Nomeditone deposits, and the Tordillo, the
Bandurrias and La Bella prospects are not currewetfiigcted in the Company’s market
capitalization and will continue its efforts to denstrate the underlying values of the
Company’s assets.
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Risk factors

The Company is a minerals producing, exploratiod development company with

properties currently focused in Chile. Its miningtidties involve numerous inherent

risks. The Company is subject to various finanadglerational and political risks that
could significantly affect its profitability and epating cash flow. The Company
minimizes these risks by careful management anthpig. These risks include changes
in local laws affecting the mining industry, a deel in the price of gold or copper,

uncertainties inherent in estimating mineral reservand mineral resources and
fluctuations in the Chilean peso against the USadol The Company does not use
financial instruments to mitigate the risks of ches in the price of gold or currency
fluctuations.

The Company operates in an international envirotmand as such, is subject to
currency risk. A significant portion of the Comganexpenditures is denominated in
Chilean pesos and Canadian dollars. A strengthesfitigese currencies could adversely
affect the Company’s costs denominated in US dallaRecently the US dollar has
strengthened significantly against both of thesgeticies.The value of the Chilean
pesos to US dollar has a great effect on the Coypaperations. The Chilean pesos is
at a near all time high of CH 640. The Companyasgidor its gold, copper and silver
sales in equivalent US dollar while most of itstsasf operations are in Chilean pesos.

The Company’s business is very dependent on thee i gold which is subject to
fluctuation by factors the Company cannot contrél.drop in the price of gold could
adversely affect the Company’s financial conditicesults of operations and cash flows.
Lower gold prices may result in: a) asset impairm@amd a write-down of the asset
carrying value, b) production cutbacks and c) dess®f operations.

The Company's Pimenton mine is highly dependentgenerating its own electrical
needs at the mine, plant and camp sites. Fuel ¢wsts risen substantially and are
expected to further increase. Higher fuel cost$ mal/e an adverse impact on profitably
of the mine.

Mine labour costs in Chile are increasing whichldadversely impact operating profits
at the Pimenton mine.

The Company operates primarily in Chile and is eegbto the laws governing the

mining industry in Chile. The Chilean governmeturrently supportive of the mining

industry but changes in government regulationsustiolg taxation, repatriation of profits,

restrictions on production, export controls, enwireental compliance, expropriation of
property and shifts in political stability of th@wntry and labor unrest could adversely
affect the Company’s exploration efforts and prddurcplans.

Gold reserves are reduced by production and therefast be replaced by expanding
existing gold deposits or finding new ones. Thesn be no assurance that the
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Company’s development and exploration programs wfiult in new gold reserves.
Mineral reserves and resources are estimates whaghdiffer significantly from actual
mining results.

Due to financial constraints the Company managespterations with a limited number
of key personnel. The need to replace any of timeeiduals could adversely affect the
Company’s operations until a qualified replacemsifibund.

The Company is currently pursuing insurance foiirss interruptions and insurance on
its camp, plant, assay laboratory, fuel storage gawge facilities at Pimenton. The
Company currently does not have these insuranéeigsol

The Company’s mine is located in an area that cqergéence severe winter weather
conditions which could adversely affect mining @iems. Such conditions occurred
during 2005, resulting in the shutdown of the mire.addition, the Company is subject
to environmental laws and regulations that are temnly changing and may require
expenditures that are significantly different froomr current estimates.

Readers should read the risk factors which arerithestin more detail in the Company’s
Annual Information Form dated December, 2008. Shachors could materially affect
future operating results of the Company and causehbresults to differ materially from
those described in forward —looking informatioratelg to the Company.

The Company’s continuance as a going concern isramt upon its ability to operate
the Pimenton mine on a profitable basis. In additethe “risk factors” described herein,
see ‘risk factors” in the Company’s Annual Inforimat Report dated December, 2008
which can be found on www.SEDAR.com.

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure controls and procedures are designgdowide reasonable assurance that all
relevant information is gathered and reported tnisemanagement, including the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finahcfficer, on a timely basis so that
appropriate decisions can be made regarding pdisiatosure. The Company’s system of
disclosure controls and procedures includes, buthos limited to, the effective
functioning of our Audit Committee and procedurasplace to systematically identify
matters warranting consideration of disclosurehgyAudit Committee.

As at the end of the period covered by this manages discussion and analysis,
management of the Company, with the participatibthe Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effeetiess of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures as required by applicakdma@ian securities laws. The
evaluation included documentation review, enquiaed other procedures considered by
management to be appropriate in the circumstaBased on that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officeavie concluded that, as of the end of
the period covered by this management’s discusasmghanalysis, the disclosure controls
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and procedures were effective to provide reasonadsarance that information required
to be disclosed in the Company’'s annual filings artdrim filings (as such terms are
defined under Multilateral Instrument 52-109 - @mation of Disclosure in Issuers’

Annual and Interim Filings) and other reports filed submitted under applicable
Canadian securities laws, is recorded, processedmarized and reported within time
periods specified by those laws and that matenébrmation is accumulated and
communicated to management of the Company, inajudive President and Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ggpeopriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Internal control over financial reporting is a pess designed by, or under the supervision
of, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chr@fiancial Officer, and effected by
the Company’'s Board of Directors, management arfteropersonnel, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaitcial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoece with the Company’s GAAP and
includes those policies and procedures that:

€) pertain to the maintenance of records that in me@lsle detail accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and disposgiaf the assets of the
Company;

(b) are designed to provide reasonable assurance thasattions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiah statements in
accordance with the Company’s GAAP, and that réseipd expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordante auithorizations of
management and directors of the issuer; and

(c) are designed to provide reasonable assurance negapdevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedgsposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material efie¢he annual financial
statements or interim financial statements;

As at the end of the period covered by this manages discussion and analysis,
management of the Company, under the supervisigheoChief Executive Officer and
the Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effeehiess of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting as required by applicall@anadian securities laws. The
evaluation included documentation review, enquiaed other procedures considered by
management to be appropriate in the circumstaBased on that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officeavie concluded that, as of the end of
the period covered by this management’s discusamah analysis, the internal control
over financial reporting were effective to provideasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaceat of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with the Company’s GAAP.
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During the most recent year end there were no @simgthe Company’s internal control
over financial reporting that materially affectest, are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over finaleeporting.
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South American Gold and Copper Company Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivaents

Restricted cash

Receivable fron an officer and director
Receivables from Enami

Receivables

Recoverable taxes

Product and supplies, inventory

Receivable from an officer and director
Mining properties, plant and equipment
Exploration properties

Recoverable taxes

Total asset

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Short term lease

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Taxes payable (IVA)

Amounts due to related parties

Long-term debt

Long-term lease

Long-term amount due to related parties
Reclamation and remediation

Non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiary

Total liabilities

Shareholders' equity

Share capital

Contributed surplus

Convertible subordinated debentures
Options

Warrants

Deficit and comprehensive loss

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity
Going concern and nature of operationgnote 1)

Commitments (note 11)

Approved by the Board of Directors

Paul J. DeslL auriers Stephen W. Houghton

March 31, September 30,
2009 2008
(Unaudited)
$ $
1.886 153
22 22
13 14
756 96
528 14
1401 2131
265 396
4.871 2.826
183 153
16.192 16.603
578 335
773 814
22.597 20.731
- 25
1.564 1.560
1.039 1.052
481 490
983 801
4.067 3.928
3.155 2.610
- 50
- 236
1.924 1.856
9.146 8.680
69.552 69.255
2917 2.580
1.060 907
1.519 1418
1.490 1.716
(63.087) (63.825)
13.451 12.051
22.597 20.731

Chairman Chief Executive Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



SOUTH AMERICAN GOLD AND COPPER COMPANY LIMITED
Consolidated Statements of Operations, Deficit and Other Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)

(Expressed in thousands of US dollars ,except per share amounts)

Income
Gold
Copper and silver

Expenses
Operating cost
Amortization and depreciation
Temporary mine shutdown
General,sales and administrative
Stock based compensation
Warrant revaluation
Foreign exchange
Interest

Other income
Reclamation and remediation
Write off of exploration properties
Income (Loss and comprehensiven loss) for period

Deficit-beginning of period

Deficit - end of period

Basic and diluted loss per share

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

March 31, March 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $
3.470 - 5.134 -
343 - 503 -
3.813 - 5.637 -
1.852 - 2.926 -
433 153 752 301
- 3) - 51
303 251 564 578
51 177 102 177
- 5 - 16
(191) (482) 48 (827)
186 202 430 409
2.634 303 4.822 705
(46) (3) (52) (14)
34 - 68 -
52 1.016 61 1.016
1.139 (1.316) 738 (1.707)
(64.226) (55.646) (63.825) (55.255)
(63.087) (56.962) (63.087) (56.962)




SOUTH AMERICAN GOLD AND COPPER COMPANY LIMITED
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

(Expressed in thousands of United States dollars)

Operating Activities
Net income (loss) for the period
Non-cash items
Amortization
Accretion of interest on long-term debt
Non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiary’s loss
Taxes and penalty
Write off of exploration properties
Foreign exchange
Mine clousere
Provision and withholding
Royalties
Non-cash non-employee share compensation
Stock based compensation
Warrant revaluation

Change in non-cash working capital relating to operations

Investing Activities
Explorations property
Mining properties, plant and equipment
Receivable from an officer and director
Recoverable taxes

Financing activities
Shares issued
Warrants excercised
Payment of capital lease

Effect of foreign exchange on cash held in foreign currency
Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the period

Net cash and cash equivalents-beginning of period
Net cash and cash equivalents-end of period

Three months ended

Six months ended

March 31, March 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $
1.139 (1.316) 738 (1.707)
433 153 752 301
41 90 241 180
8 - (15) -
- - 17 -
52 1.016 61 1.016
(191) (482) 48 (827)
34 - 68 -
(104) - 63 -
217 - 333 -
(28) - 13 -
51 177 102 177
- 5 - 16
1.652 (357) 2.421 (844)
221 602 (345) 564
1.873 245 2.076 (280)
(11) (252) (18) (397)
(326) (992) (568) (1.118)
(58) - (89) -
- (551) - (684)
(395) (1.795) (675) (2.199)
- 29 361 3.459
- 44 - 434
9) - (16) -
(9) 73 345 3.893
(21) (33) (13) 199
1.448 (1.510) 1.733 1.613
438 3.467 153 344

1.886 1.957

1.886

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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South American Gold and Copper Company Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Six Months Ended March 31, 2009 and 2008

(all tabular amounts are expressed in thousandsSfdollars, except number of shares and per slzed
1. Going Concern and Nature of Operations

The management of South American Gold and Coppenpaay Limited (the “Company” or “SAGC”") have
prepared these unaudited consolidated financiaémstents for the six months ended March 31, 2009 in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted adogumtnciples (GAAP).

These consolidated financial statements have begraped on a going concern basis, which contengpthte
realization of assets and discharge of obligationghe normal course of business as they come Moe.
adjustments have been made to the carrying amaintse assets or liabilities, the reported revenaed
expenses or the balance sheet classifications umsdbese consolidated financial statements shold t
Company not be able to continue normal businessatipas.

On June 9, 2005, a major snowstorm caused damatie telectrical and air compressor equipment at the
Pimenton mine’s main portal entrance, resulting ishutdown of the mine, which remained closed iy
2008.

As at March 31, 2009, the Company reported a deffcapproximately $63 million, a positive workicgpital
of approximately $804,000 and sales of approximat€f5,637,000 for the six month period ended MéBt,
2009. The Company’s continuance as a going cornisdrighly dependent on continuing profitable opers
of the Pimenton gold mine. There is no assuranatettie steps management is taking will be succkeastl in
the event that such resources are not availablesimagnts to the carrying values of the assetsiabhiities, the
reported expenses and the balance sheet clagsificatvith could be material, may be necessary.

Nature of Operations

The Company is a Canadian corporation listed onTtmnto Stock Exchange (TSX). On July 1, 2004, the
Company commenced commercial production at its Riomegold mine in Chile. The mine was closed ineJun
2005 due to snow damage. The Company was succdasfalising funds in December 2007 to restart
operations at Pimenton. The Company has declagethihe to be in commercial production effective dbetr

1, 2008. The Company's principal exploration aedelopment activities are being focused on its Riore
gold mine. The Company also holds interests in illord gold / copper prospect, Bandurrias a cogpespect
and La Bella a gold prospect. The Company alsoshiolgrests in two limestone deposits.

The recoverability of the amounts shown for exgioraand development costs is dependent on thevbsg
of economically recoverable reserves, the abilitthe Company to obtain the necessary financingptaplete
the projects and on future profitable productiompmceeds from the disposition thereof.

2. Basis of Consolidation and Presentation of InterinFinancial Statements
The interim consolidated financial statements of Bompany have been prepared by management in
accordance with Canadian GAAP following the sameoanting policies and methods as the consolidated

financial statements for the fiscal year ended &aper 30, 2008. In the opinion of management, all
adjustments considered necessary for fair presentéiave been included in these consolidated filshnc

36



South American Gold and Copper Company Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Six Months Ended March 31, 2009 and 2008

(all tabular amounts are expressed in thousandsSfdollars, except number of shares and per slzed

statements. The disclosure in these interim cafeteld financial statements may not conform inedpects to
Canadian GAAP for annual consolidated financialesteents and as such should be read in conjunctittm w
the Company’s most recent annual consolidated iahstatements, being those for the year endeteBdyer
30, 2008.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

These interim consolidated financial statementtofolthe same accounting policies and methods af the
application as the Company’s most recent annuaalimtated financial statements, except with respethe
following new and revised accounting standards Wwittee Company is required to adopt under Canadian
GAAP for interim and annual financial statementatieg to its fiscal year commencing October 1,200

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountantaeidsthe new Handbook Section 3064, “Goodwill and
Intangible Assets”, which will replace Section 3p6%oodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. The new
standard establishes revised standards for thegmémm, measurement, presentation and disclosdire o
goodwill and intangible assets. The new standasa jatovides guidance for the treatment of prepriidln@nd
start-up costs and requires that these costs benseg as incurred. The new standard applies toahiamd
interim financial statements relating to fiscal ngedoeginning on or after October 1, 2008. Managémen
currently assessed the impact of these new acogustandards on its consolidated financial statésndrne
Company has determined that deferred charges rheetriteria for deferral with the adoption of CICA
Handbook Section 3064 for the fiscal year beginfatober 1, 2008.

Inventory

In June 2007, a replacement section for inventprgesction 3031 “Inventories” was issued and provide
guidance on the determination of cost and its syEs® recognition as an expense, including anyevetitwn

to net realizable value. It also provides guidamaéhe cost formulas that are used to assign tmgtsentories
and eliminates the use of the “last-in, first-omatéthod of accounting and is effective for the fispears
beginning on or after January 1, 2008.

The Company values its concentrate inventoriebe@tdwer of cost or net realizable value at the ehthe
reporting period. Net realizable value includesahgtices, net of treatment charges and freightaMarices
can be subject to significant change from periopeisod.

Financial Instruments

Effective October 1, 2007, the Company adopted Gamadian Institute of Chartered Accountants’ new
Handbook Section 1530, “Comprehensive Income”, i8e@&855, “Financial Instruments”, and Section 3861
“Financial Instruments” — Disclosure and Preseatdti These standards were adopted on a prospduisis
but calculated retrospectively; accordingly, thenparative financial statements for the prior yeavehnot
been restated.
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Comprehensive Income and Equity

Section 1530 introduces new requirements for sanatwhen certain gains and losses (“other compehe
income” or “OCI") must be temporarily presented sidé of net, loss. Comprehensive income includés bo
net loss and OCI. OCl is the change in sharehdlégtsty from non-owner sources which are not ideld in
the calculation of net loss until realized. Cuminiatchanges in OCI are included in Accumulated Othe
Comprehensive Income (“AOCI"), which is presentechanew category of shareholders’ equity on tharizad
sheet. The Company had no OCI transactions dunmgik months ended March 31, 2009, and no opaming
closing balances for AOCI.

Financial Instruments Recognition, Measurement, Didosure and Presentation

Under section 3855, all financial instruments desgified into one of these five categories: heldtfading,
held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivabbegilable-for-sale financial assets or other rfiial
liabilities. All financial instruments and derivegéis are measured on the balance sheet date a&tlfag upon
initial recognition. Subsequent measurement dependthe initial classification of the instrumenteld-for-
trading financial assets are measured at fair yalit changes in fair value recognized in net eg® (l0ss).
Available-for-sale financial instruments are meaduat fair value, with changes in fair value reearéh OCI
until the instrument is derecognised or impaireshanhs and receivables, held-to-maturity investmantsother
financial liabilities are measured at amortizedt.cA derivative instruments, including embeddestidatives,
are recorded in the balance sheet at fair valuesarthey qualify for the normal sales and purchasesption.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that areaxempt are recorded in net loss.

Upon adoption of these new standards, the Compasydesignated its cash as held-for-trading, whéch i
measured at fair value. Receivables are desigratdoans and receivables, which are measured atiaedb
cost. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities @esignated as other liabilities, which are measwaed
amortized cost. At March 31, 2009, the Company tigither available-for-sale nor held-to-maturityafincial
instruments.

The Company evaluated the impact of Section 3858s0P007 financial statements and recorded aitians
adjustment to opening deficit in the 2007 yearhi@ &amount of $22,000 to reflect the impact of auhgpthe
effective interest rate method.

Section 3861 identifies and details informatioéodisclosed in the financial statements.
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4. Future Changes in Accounting Policies

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)

In 2006, the Canadian Accounting Standards BoaAt$B") published a new strategic plan that will
significantly affect financial reporting requiremsrior Canadian companies. The AcSB strategic pldlines
the convergence of Canadian GAAP with IFRS ovesx@ected five year transitional period. In Februz098
the AcSB announced that 2011 is the changeoverfdateublicly-listed companies to use IFRS, repiaci
Canada’s own GAAP. The date is for interim and ahfinancial statements relating to fiscal yeargitweing

on or after January 1, 2011. The transition datégaofiary 1, 2011 will require the restatement fnjgarative
purposes of amounts reported by the Company foyeae ended September 30, 2012. While the Compasy h
begun assessing the adoption of IFRS for 2011finlacial reporting impact of the transition to ISRannot
be reasonably estimated at this time.

For interim and annual financial statements regatia its fiscal year commencing October 1, 201% th
Company will be required to adopt new CICA AccongtHandbook Section 1582 “Business Combinations”,
Section 1601 “Consolidated Financial Statementsl 8action 1602 “Non-Controlling Interest”. Handkoo
Section 1582 replaces existing Handbook Sectiorl 1'BRisiness Combinations”, and Handbook Sections
1601 and 1602 together replace Handbook Sectiof ‘iBOnsolidated Financial Statements”. The adoptib
Handbook Sections 1582, and collectively, 1601 4662 provides the Canadian equivalent to IFRS 3
“Business Combinations” and International AccougtBtandard IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Fiabnc
Statements” respectively. The Company has notdgttrmined the effect, if any, that the adoptiorthafse
standards will have on its financial statements.

5. Capital Management

The Company manages its capital structure and madjestments to it, based on the funds availabliéo
Company, in order to support the acquisition, esgilon and development of mineral properties.

The acquisition, exploration, financing, and depebent of natural resources require the expenditire
significant funds before production commences. dilisally, the Company has financed these activities
through the issuance of common shares, the exedfisgptions and common share purchase warrants,
promissory notes and debentures, bank debt anddeddgerms from creditors.

On April 16, 2007, the shareholders authorized@hmpany to apply for a certificate of continuanoéler the
Canada Business Corporations Act (the “CBCA”") aauitig the Company as if it had been incorporateteun
the CBCA. The continuance was applied for and cetegl As a result of the continuance the Company's
authorized capital consists of an unlimited nundfe@ommon shares with no par value.

The Corporation has not declared or paid any diddeand does not foresee the declaration or payofent
dividends in the near future. Any decision to pagdends on its shares will be made by the boairectors
on the basis of the Corporation’s earnings, finan@quirements and other conditions existing ahduture
time.
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6. Share Capital

Number of Amount

shares $
Outstanding — September 30, 2008 728,528,719 69,25¢
Private placement (i) 19,408,620 274

Private placement (ii) 1,663,18, 23
Outstanding — March 31, 2009 749,600,521 69,55:

i.) On December 12, 2008, the Company sold througlivatprplacement 19,408,620 units at CA$0.025
per unit, consisting of one common share and offecbenmon share purchase warrant to purchase a
further common share at CA$0.045 per share at iamy within 24 months of the date of issue. In
addition the placement agent is to receive 1,2@@@8nmon stock purchase warrants exercisable for
24 months from the date of issuance at CA$0.025sphare. Net proceeds of the placement were
$362,733, of which $88,345 was assigned to theamssr The fair value of the warrants was assigned
using the Black-Scholes valuation model assumirigkafree interest rate of 2.8%, no dividend and a
volatility factor of 100%.

ii.) On March 6, 2009, 1,663,182 common shares valu€d\&0.035 were issued for services rendered to
the Corporations and for the purchase of a LanceRdeep. The share were value $45,945 using the
TSX closing price on February 23, 2009. In additibe Company issued 1,414,050 common stock
purchase warrants exercisable for 24 months fraendtite of issuance at CA$0.036 per share. The
warrants were valued at $23,390. The fair valuthefwarrants was assigned using the Black-Scholes
valuation model assuming a risk-free interest @fted.4%, no dividend and a volatility factor of
120%.

7. Financial Risk Factors

The Company'’s risk exposures and the impact oil€trapany’s financial instruments are summarized
below:

Credit Risk

The Company has no significant concentration adicrésk arising from operations. Management bedev
that the credit risk concentration with respeateieivables is remote.

Liquidity Risk
The Company's approach to managing liquidity riska ensure it will have sufficient liquidity to e
liabilities when due. As at March 31, 2009, the @amy had a positive working capital of approximgatel

$804,000 and cash of $1,886,000. The Company'scida8 approximately $63,087,000 and has
shareholders equity of approximately $13,451,000.
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To preserve its cash position the Company plagshaentrate its efforts on Pimenton.
Risk Factors

The Company is a minerals producing, exploratiod davelopment company with properties currently
focused in Chile. Its mining activities involve narous inherent risks. The Company is subjecatmus
financial, operational and political risks that ttltauld significantly affect its profitability andperating
cash flow. The Company minimizes these risks bgfchmanagement and planning. These risks include
changes in local laws affecting the mining induséydecline in the price of gold or copper, undetims
inherent in estimating mineral reserves and minersburces and fluctuations in the Chilean pesinaga
the US dollar. The Company does not use finamesituments to mitigate the risks of changes inpttiee

of gold or currency fluctuations.

The Company operates in an international envirommand as such, is subject to currency risk. A
significant portion of the Company’s expendituresienominated in Chilean pesos and Canadian dollars
A strengthening of these currencies could adveisidet the Company’s costs denominated in US dolla
Recently the US dollar has weakened significargBimst both of these currencies.

The Company’s business is very dependent on tle pfi gold which is subject to fluctuation by fasto
the Company cannot control. A drop in the priceyolid could adversely affect the Company’s finahcia
condition, results of operations and cash flowswér gold prices may result in: a) asset impairnaemt a
write-down of the asset carrying value, b) produtitutbacks and c) cessation of operations.

The Company’s Pimenton mine is highly dependengenerating its own electrical needs at the mine,
plant and camp sites. Fuel costs have risen sulahaand are expected to go higher. Higher fumdts
will have an adverse impact on profitably of theneni

Mine labour costs in Chile are increasing whichldaadversely impact operating profits at the Piroant
mine.

The Company operates primarily in Chile and is egabto the laws governing the mining industry in
Chile. The Chilean government is currently suggerof the mining industry but changes in governmen
regulations including taxation, repatriation of fiisy restrictions on production, export controls,
environmental compliance, expropriation of propeatyd shifts in political stability of the countryé
labour unrest could adversely affect the Compaeysoration efforts and production plans.

Gold reserves are reduced by production and therefuust be replaced by expanding existing gold
deposits or finding new ones. There can be noasse that the Company’s development and exploratio
programs will result in new gold reserves. Minaederves and resources are estimates which may diff
significantly from actual mining results.

Due to financial constraints the Company managesperations with a limited number of key personnel

The need to replace any of these individuals caddersely affect the Company's operations until a
qualified replacement is found.
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The Company does not currently carry insurancebminess interruptions nor does it carry insuraoce
its camp, plant, assay laboratory, fuel storagganage facilities at Pimenton due to financial tasts.

The Company’'s mine is located in an area that cquer@éence severe winter weather conditions which
could adversely affect mining operations. Such @@t occurred during 2005, resulting in the slowd

of the mine. In addition, the Company is subjecttivironmental laws and regulations that are eoist
changing and may require expenditures that arfisigntly different from our current estimates.

Readers should read the risk factors which areritbest in more detail in the Company’s Annual
Information Form for the year ended September 8®82 Such factors could materially affect future
operating results of the Company and cause acesallts to differ materially from those described in
forward —looking statements relating to the Company

The Company's continuance as a going concern isrdigmt upon obtaining adequate funding, reaching
profitable operations at the mine, pursuing joiehture partners, sale or other disposition of apart of

its assets, or additional external funding. Theneo assurance that the steps management is takirge
successful and, in the event that such resoureesadravailable, the Company’s assets may notdleee

or its liabilities discharged at their carrying amts, and these differences could be material.

Sensitivity Analysis

As of March 31, 2009, both the carrying and faiueaamounts of the Company's financial instrumeangs
approximately equivalent.

The Company believes the following movements azasonably possible" over a three-month period:
(i) There would be no impact on the cash held asbmpany does not earn any interest on this cash.

(i) The Company does not hold significant balancefereign currencies to give rise to exposuréteign
exchange risk.

8. Recoverable Taxes

Recoverable taxes in the amount of $1,401,000 (2048) of the total of $2,174,000 at March 31, 200
(September 30, 2008 — 2,945,000) have been cledsifi current asset in the consolidated balaremsh
Recoverable taxes in the amount of $327,000 asaatiM31, 2009 (September 30, 2008 - $344,000) septe
IVA taxes paid on the fixed assets, which can lm®vered upon request to the Chilean tax authorifibe
Company filed such request, which has been denyeithd Chilean tax authorities on technical grouridse
Company is appealing this decision and has refieddVVA taxes on the fixed assets as a long-tessea IVA
amounting to $1,847,000 for the period ended M&th2009 relating to other expenditures is recddera
either by means of a credit against taxes due sptas by the Company or by requesting reimbursenfditA
when tax export commitments are proven. Theretheerecoverability of these amounts is dependean e
ability of the Company to develop and derive futpreduction from its Pimenton gold mine.
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9. Long-term Debt

Due to events at the mine Pimenton advised OPICitthalieves Pimenton will not be in compliancettwihe
financial and operating covenants for the calendarters through and until June 30, 2009.

As of September 30, 2008, OPIC has granted Pimewtivers with respect to the financial and opemmatin
events of default discussed above until June 309.20

10. Warrants

2008
Number of

warrants $

Balance - September 30, 2008 173,423,0: 1,716
Issued (note 6(i)) 10,914,1 88
Issued (note 6(ii)) 1,414, 24
Expired warrants (a) (55,111,42( (338)
Balance — March 31, 2009 130,639,8¢ 1,490

@) Warrants expiring during 2009 were valued at $338,0
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11. Commitments

a) Project Commitments

Project

Catedral and Rino

La Bella

Cal Norte

Total

potential

Description commitment
$

A loan for development costs up to 2,50

To the owner of another section of the property -
$275,000 - issuance of 1,824,815 common shares of
the Company valued at $125,000, and the balance of
$150,000 due on January 25, 2010, payable at os
option in the Company’s shares issued at a 15%
discount from the market value at that date, btit no
less than CA$0.20 per common share; the Company
can prepay this amount at any time.

La Bella inner was acquired in December 2007 k'
Company by way of an option agreement of the
property. Under the terms of the option agreement
US$10,000 was paid on signing; US$20,000 was paid
in six months;$70,000 was paid at the end of ths fi
year; $200,000 at the end of the second year; §8C

at the end of the third year, $900,000 at the driden
fourth year and $10®,000 at the end of the fifth ye:
The Company will pay a 2 2% Net Smelter Royalty
from production thereafter. The Company also has a
minimum investment obligation of $50,000 in year
one; $250,000 in year two and $700,000 in yeasethre

On the outer iccle the Company paid $100,000
December 2008, and the Company has an oblic
to pay $100,000 in December 2009, $500,00
December 2010, $700,000 in December 2
$1,000,000 in December 2012 and $2,600,0C
December 2013. The Company will pay% % ne
smelter royalty to the optionee of the inner cirfctam
production thereafter.
9,00(

Capital contribution of $1,800,000 to earn 60% Bqui
interest 1,80(
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b) Lease Commitments

On February 13, 2009 the Company received appiowad Toronto Stock Exchange for the issuance of a
Convertible Debenture secured by equipment leaseling US$507,119. The Convertible Debenturerame
interest bearing and are convertible at Cdn 0.05pare or for up to a total of 12,337,140 shdissler the
term of the Convertible Debentures, the net am¢umal lease payments less lease payments mad¢hkess
balance of interest due on the remaining lease patgh shall be convertible into common shares ef th
Company. As the lease payments are made by Compdifieaa Pimenton, the amount of the Convertible
Debenture is correspondingly reduced. Compafiia idiémenton may on 30 days notice to the lessqagre
the net amount due to be paid to the lessor léserahining interest due under the leases or thgolemay
elect to take the balance of the lease paymenbfriaterest on the remaining lease payments) ameshof the
Company within the 30 day notice period. The Cotibler Debenture will be issued to secure certain
equipment leases used to purchase equipment fd?ithenton gold mine on terms not currently avadatol
Pimenton.

The conversion feature of convertible secured dribes was assigned a fair value of $152,664 udieg t
Black-Scholes valuation model assuming a risk iinegrest rate of 1.82%, no dividend and a volagtiiétctor of
120% and such fair value was credited to equityedible secured note. The debenture was recordttia
fair value of 354,455 and by July 4, 2010, the yiag value of the debentures will have been acdréte
$507,119, the face amount due upon maturity. Thenbe of this debenture was $378,324 at Marcl2G09.

12.Related Party Transactions

A company owned by chief executive officer, whaalso a director, billed the Company $42,228 for she
period ended March 31, 2009 for the provision ditefspace and services used by the Company.

Receivable from an officer and director of $182,813the six months ended March 31, 2009 is theansunt

of non-interest-bearing note receivable compengstimd advances to the chief executive officer istadso a
director of the Company. The note is due on or teefm extended due date of June 30, 2009, coliatnicy
6,532,000 common shares of the Company owned byofficer and director. As at March 31, 2008 théeno
receivable amounted to $286,233, non-interest-bgasidvances to this officer and director amounted t
$47,694 and was included in long-term receivables.

The former Chief Financial Officer of the Comparggired on February 6, 2008 at which time he wasdowe
$207,260. The Company entered into a retiremergesgent with the former Chief Financial Officer unde
which he received 2,000,000 Bonus Shares and wdshf#,648 for the difference between the net spties

of the 2,000,000 Bonus Shares and $100,000. Intiaddhe has been paid $5,000 per month beginning
February, 2008 and will continue to be paid at tae of $5,000 per month until Pimenton is placeid i
commercial production at which time he will rece®#&2,500 per month until the net balance of $29 860f
March 31, 2009 has been paid. The Chief Financifit@ billed $nil for accounting services rendertedthe
Company for the six month period ended March 30920arch 31, 2008 - $4,504).
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A company controlled by the current Chief Finan¢xficer billed the Company $20,809 for accountamy
administration services rendered in the six morgtiopl ended March 31, 2009 (March 31, 2008 - $8,555
Amounts due to related parties include payablaitoofficer of $5,257 for such services at Mardh 3009
(March 31, 2008 - $1,912).

On February 13, 2009 the Company received apprfveat Toronto Stock Exchange for the issuance of
Convertible Debenture secured by equipment leagalng US$507,119. The Convertible Debenture ane n
interest bearing and are convertible at Cdn 0.05share or for up to a total of 12,336,386 shaltksler the
term of the Convertible Debentures, the net amd@tmél lease payments less lease payments madehkess
balance of interest due on the remaining lease paigh shall be convertible into common shares ef th
Company. As the lease payments are made by Compdifiera Pimenton, the amount of the Convertible
Debenture is correspondingly reduced. Compahia iMifémenton may on 30 days notice to the lessqagre
the net amount due to be paid to the lessor Iéssrahining interest due under the leases or thmoltemay elect
to take the balance of the lease payment (nettefdst on the remaining lease payments) in shdréseo
Company within the 30 day notice period. The Cotilvker Debenture will be issued to secure certain@gent
leases used to purchase equipment for the Pimgotdmmine on terms not currently available to PitnenThe
conversion feature of convertible secured debestw@s assigned a fair value of $152,664 using thekB
Scholes valuation model assuming a risk free istere of 1.82%, no dividend and a volatility facof 50%
and such fair value was credited to equity conbkrtsecured note. The debenture was recorded iatfalive
value of 354,455 and by July 4, 2010, the carryialgie of the debentures will have been accret&b@y,119,
the face amount due upon maturity. The balanchisfebenture was $378,324 at March 31, 2009.

On December 12, 2008, the Company sold throughvatprplacement 19,408,620 units at CA$0.025 pér un
consisting of one common share and one half comshane purchase warrant to purchase a further common
share at CA$0.045 per share at any time within 2aths of the date of issue, of which 4,285,020 esharere
issued to a director who is also an officer of @mmpany in payment of cash advance of $85,000 aeiber
2008, plus purchase warrants to purchase up td5A1@. In addition the placement agent is to rexeiv
1,209,888 common stock purchase warrants exereigabl24 months from the date of issuance at CA%®.0
per share.

During 2007, the Executive Vice-President Directolaims and Land Management, who is also a direaftor
the Company, purchased an interest in the Pimamites and royalty from a non-related party. The falue
of this note was $917,085 at March 31, 2009 (M&th2008 - $760,000) and interest expense was $24qt
six month period ended March 31, 2009 (March 31820%$24,282). Amounts due to related parties thelu
$218,076 (2008- $170,799) for interest and $268f@Baoyalties as at March 31, 2009 (March 31, 2608
$91,802).

Amounts due to related parties include $219,544%169,644 as at March 31, 2009 and 2008, respégtice

interest due to executive-vice president-directaploration who is also a director of the Comparo holds
one of the Pimenton notes in the fair value amoah®911,235 and $754,000 as at March 31, 20092808,

respectively. In addition, amounts due to relatadigs include $268,036 and $91,802 as at Marci2@19 and
March 31, 2008, respectively, for royalties duehis officer and director who is the owner of a satelter
royalty on the Pimenton gold mine and include @&aab/ance of $8,909 which was provided to the comppa
July 2008.
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On June 20, 2007, the Company sold through a gripticement 26,431,515 units at CA$0.05 per unit,
consisting of one common share and one common ghiacthase warrant to purchase a further commore sttar
CA$0.07 per share at any time within 36 monthshef date of issue. Net proceeds of the placemerg wer
$1,174,978. The subscriber, the Executive-ViceiBess-Director of Claims and Land Management, who i
also a Director of the Company, subscribed and fmi®1,360,000 units. On January 15, 2008 the &R
4,928,485 units were issued on the same terms aseabNet proceeds of the placement were $220,622,
which $74,420 was assigned to the warrants. Thevéue of the warrants was assigned using thelBla
Scholes valuation model assuming a risk-free isteate of 2.80%, no dividend and a volatility facdf 50%.

In April 2008, the Executive Vice-President anddaior of Exploration and the Executive Vice-Prestdef
Land and Administration, both of whom are directofsshe Company agreed to enter into an agreeneent t
lease/purchase to the Company’s wholly owned sigrgidCMP, two new Komatsu front end loaders omter
not currently available to the Company. The pureh@sce of the two Komatsu front end loaders t6¢10,038
inclusive of VAT at 19%, for $220,019 each. The @amy has made a 25% payment against the purchase pr
of the equipment and the balance was funded byette® officers and directors under the 37-month
lease/purchase agreement.

In June 2008, the Executive Vice-President anddiireof Exploration, who is also a director of tiempany
agreed to guarantee the payment of a 37-month leasdhase agreement entered into by the Company on
February 23, 2008 with a local Chilean bank forghechase of a 4x4 Land Rover and a 4x4 Mahindiektfor

a total purchase price of $71,624 plus VAT at 1% & total of $85,232. This director and officdrtioe
Company has also guaranteed the payment of a 3thnease/purchase agreement with a local Chileak ba
for the purchase of an ambulance for purchase pfi&&4,992 plus VAT at 19% or a total of $65,440.

In June 2008, the Executive Vice-President anddireof Exploration, who is also a director of iempany
agreed to enter into an agreement to lease/purdcivaseew 4x4 Land Rover trucks to the Company’s Nyho
owned subsidiary, CMP, on terms not currently aldé to the Company. The purchase price of theliaval
Rovers totalled $83,998 inclusive of VAT at 19%r, $11,999 each. The Company has made a 20% payment
against the purchase price of the equipment andbdlence was funded by this officer and directadarrthe
37-month lease/purchase agreement.

In April 2008, the Executive Vice President anddotor of Land and Administration, who is also adior of
the Company agreed to enter into a 37-month agneietndease/purchase two Hino trucks, one for 32 kK@
and the other for 17,000 kg, to the Company’s whollined subsidiary, CMP, on terms not currentlyilatée
to the Company. The purchase price of the two Hicks total $203,693 inclusive of VAT tax at 198te first
for $129,341 and the second for $74,352.

Two officers and directors of the Company hold tle®-controlling interest in Catedral. Under an agrent
dated November 27, 1996, the Company agreed toderav cause to provide these officers and direcdoan
of up to $1,250,000 each or $2,500,000 in totathSoans are to pay their proportionate share eéld@ment
costs if a bankable feasibility study demonstréites the properties can be placed into commercizdyction,
and to fund their combined 50% share of an optayngent totalling $500,000, which was paid durin@72.9

The Executive Vice President and Director of Claamsl Land Management and the Executive Vice Preside
and Director of Exploration, both directors of tkmmpany, hold convertible secured debentures of the
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Company in the aggregate principal amount of $1,@@ Interest expense was $37,961 and $57,99&éor
periods ended March 31, 2009 and March 31, 20G&eatively. Amounts due to related parties include
payables to these officers of $73,913 and $116¢898t March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008, respéytifcr
interest on such debentures.

On July 11, 2008, the Executive Vice President Rindctor of Land and Administration, who is alsdieector

of the Company bought from CMP, a Ford Ranger trlidle sale price of the truck was $13,575 inclusifze
VAT tax at 19%. The transaction generated a $5)886 to the Company. Amounts receivable from rdlate
parties include $12,884 for this transaction.

The Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Vice $tdent and Director of Exploration and the Exeautilice
President and Director of Administration who arsoaDirectors of the Corporation hold a total of%8.2et
smelter royalty interest on Tordillo, a 3.2% netetter royalty interest on Bandurrias and a 2.50%snaelter
royalty interest on both the inner circle and duatle of claims on La Bella. These net smelter hyymterests

were approved by the Board of Directors and Comgaéms Committee of the Company in 2001. These
individuals have not received compensation andfiisrmmparable to mining industry standards si2@@1.

13. Short-term Borrowings
Short-term borrowings consist of non-interest-begriotes to a supplier.
14.Comparative Amounts

Certain of the prior year’'s amounts have been ssifiad to conform to the current year’s consobdiat
financial statement presentation.
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FORM 52-109F2
CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM FILINGS
FULL CERTIFICATE

I, Stephen W. Houghton, Chief Executive Officer of South American Gold and Copper Company Limited,
certify the following:

1. Review: | have reviewed the interim financial statements and interim MD&A (together, the "interim
filings") of South American Gold and Copper Company Limited (the "issuer") for the interim period ended
March 31, 2009.

2. No misrepresentations: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim
filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be
stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which
it was made, with respect to the period covered by the interim filings.

3. Fair presentation: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim
financial statements together with the other financial information included in the interim filings fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer,
as of the date of and for the periods presented in the interim filings.

4. Responsibility: The issuer's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (DC&P) and internal control over financial reporting
(ICFR), as those terms are defined in National Instrument 52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers'
Annual and Interim Filings, for the issuer.

5. Design: Subject to the limitations, if any, described in paragraphs 5.2 and 5.3, the issuer's other
certifying officer(s) and | have, as at the end of the period covered by the interim filings

(a) designed DC&P, or caused it to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
that

(i) material information relating to the issuer is made known to us by others, particularly during the period
in which the interim filings are being prepared; and

(ii) information required to be disclosed by the issuer in its annual filings, interim filings or other reports
filed or submitted by it under securities legislation is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in securities legislation; and

(b) designed ICFR, or caused it to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with the issuer's GAAP.

5.1 Control framework: The control framework the issuer's other certifying officer(s) and | used to design
the issuer's ICFR is Internal Control over Financial Reporting-Guidance for Smaller Public Companies.

5.2 N/A
5.3 N/A

6. Reporting changes in ICFR: The issuer has disclosed in its interim MD&A any change in the issuer's
ICFR that occurred during the period beginning on October 1, 2008 and ended on March 31, 2009 that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer's ICFR.

Date: May 13, 2009
“Stephen W. Houghton”

Stephen W. Houghton
Chief Executive Officer




FORM 52-109F2
CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM FILINGS
FULL CERTIFICATE

I, Peter W. Hogg, Chief Financial Officer of South American Gold and Copper Company Limited, certify
the following:

1. Review: | have reviewed the interim financial statements and interim MD&A (together, the "interim
filings") of South American Gold and Copper Company Limited (the "issuer") for the interim period ended
March 31, 2009.

2. No misrepresentations: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim
filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be
stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which

it was made, with respect to the period covered by the interim filings.

3. Fair presentation: Based on my knowledge, having exercised reasonable diligence, the interim
financial statements together with the other financial information included in the interim filings fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer,
as of the date of and for the periods presented in the interim filings.

4. Responsibility: The issuer's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (DC&P) and internal control over financial reporting
(ICFR), as those terms are defined in National Instrument 52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers'
Annual and Interim Filings, for the issuer.

5. Design: Subject to the limitations, if any, described in paragraphs 5.2 and 5.3, the issuer's other
certifying officer(s) and | have, as at the end of the period covered by the interim filings

(a) designed DC&P, or caused it to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
that

(i) material information relating to the issuer is made known to us by others, particularly during the period
in which the interim filings are being prepared; and

(ii) information required to be disclosed by the issuer in its annual filings, interim filings or other reports
filed or submitted by it under securities legislation is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in securities legislation; and

(b) designed ICFR, or caused it to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with the issuer's GAAP.

5.1 Control framework: The control framework the issuer's other certifying officer(s) and | used to design
the issuer's ICFR is Internal Control over Financial Reporting-Guidance for Smaller Public Companies.

5.2 N/A
5.3 N/A

6. Reporting changes in ICFR: The issuer has disclosed in its interim MD&A any change in the issuer's
ICFR that occurred during the period beginning on October 1, 2008 and ended on March 31, 2009 that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer's ICFR.

Date: May 13, 2009

‘Peter W. Hogg”
Peter W. Hogg

Chief Financial Officer



